

Legislative Library Victoria, British Columbia

OF BRITISH COLUMBIA Supplement, 1987–2001

Legislative Library Victoria, British Columbia

OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

SUPPLEMENT, 1987–2001

Legislative Library Victoria, British Columbia 2002

National Library of Canada Cataloguing in Publication Data

Main entry under title:

Electoral history of British Columbia : supplement, 1987 - 2001

Supplement to: Electoral history of British Columbia, 1871–1986.

Includes bibliographical references: p. ISBN 0-7726-4789-5

 British Columbia. Legislative Assembly - Elections -History.
 Elections - British Columbia - History.
 British Columbia. Legislative Library.

JL439.A15E43 324.9711 C2002-960118-5

Table of Contents

PREFACE

INTRODUCTION

PART ONE	Page
Election Results	1
Party Abbreviations	50
Parties and Elections	51
Elected Candidates	52
Plebiscites and Referenda	60
Initiative Petitions	61
Recall Petitions	62
PART TWO	
Chief Electoral Officers and Registrars General of Voters	65
Returning Officers, Registrars of Voters and Voters Lists	66
PART THREE	
Royal and Special Commissions on Elections	73
Select Legislative Committees on Elections	74
Statutory History of Election Law in British Columbia	75
Electoral Redistribution in British Columbia	77
Election Act Regulations	78
PART FOUR	
Candidates Who Ran in More Than One Electoral District	79
Controverted and Voided Elections	79
Elected Candidates Who Did Not Take Their Seat in the Legislature	79
Multi-Member Districts	79
Registered Voters Who Voted in Multi-Member Districts	79
Electoral Highlights	80
Women Members of the Legislative Assembly in British Columbia	81
PART FIVE	
Premiers of British Columbia	83
Sessions of the British Columbia Legislative Assembly	84
PART SIX	
Sources	85

ELECTORAL HISTORY OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

1871 - 1986

"history

a chronological record of significant events (as affecting a nation or institution) usually including an explanation of their causes"

— Webster's New Collegiate Dictionary

PREFACE

This document has been prepared to provide a convenient and authoritative historical overview of electoral activities in the Province of British Columbia during the 115 year period from 1871 to 1986.

The date contained in this document was gathered from a variety of sources which among others included *The British Columbia Gazette*, the *Journals of the Legislative Assembly* and the *Statement of Votes* (which appeared first in 1928). The *Statement of Votes* is now continuously published by Elections British Columbia.

The *Electoral History of British Columbia* provides results for all general and by-elections since 1871, based on both official and unofficial sources. Chris P. Fulker with whom the idea was first discussed and who performed much of the earlier research for the document is of the hope that —

"this work will prove most revealing to future researchers and will perhaps spur them on to more detailed work by providing a suitable background and framework."

I suspect that this document has the full potential of helping Mr. Fulker realize his hopes.

The following people contributed in various ways to the preparation of this document and it is to them that the *Electoral History of British Columbia* is dedicated: Frederike Verspoor, Chris Fulker, Margaret Hastings, Judi Bennett, Jaime Gill, Linda Stinson, Ian Parker and Chris Roberts.

HARRY M. GOLDBERG Chief Electoral Officer and Registrar General of Voters Elections British Columbia

AUGUST 1988

Electoral History of British Columbia Supplement 1987–2001

Preface

This supplement to the *Electoral History of British Columbia*, 1871–1986, has been compiled to meet requests from clients and researchers who enjoyed the benefits of the easy access to an overview of electoral activities in British Columbia in the original volume. The *Supplement* brings that information up to the general election of 2001.

The data in the *Supplement*, was, like the original volume, gathered from a variety of sources, but focused primarily on the *Statement of Votes* for the Province, the *Journals of the Legislative Assembly* and the *Statutes of British Columbia*. The *Supplement* lists the results of the general elections, by-elections and other electoral activities, such as recall and referenda initiatives from 1987 to 2001.

We hope the *Supplement* will be as useful to users as the original volume proved to be. Maedythe Martin undertook the task of compiling the information and the Chief Electoral Officer, Robert Patterson arranged for his staff to vet the information. For all your efforts: my thanks.

Joan A. Barton Director, Legislative Library

March 2002

INTRODUCTION

This volume is a supplement to the *Electoral History of British Columbia*, 1871 – 1986, continuing the historical record until the end of 2001. It begins with by-elections that followed the 1986 General Election and concludes with the 2001 General Election and legislative changes up to the end of 2001.

A comparison of the two volumes is instructive. There are more women Members in the last 15 years than in the previous 115 and even a casual reading of the list of elected candidates shows how the growing diversity of the Province has become part of its political life. The dominance of Scottish surnames found in early provincial elections has evolved into a list of names reflecting the present population of the Province.

British Columbia has a long history of independent and varied political views and this continued in the period covered by this volume: candidates representing no less than 22 political parties were nominated in the 2001 General Election.

Legislative change has led to the inclusion of three new sections not found in the *Electoral History* of *British Columbia*, 1981 – 1986. These list Initiative Petitions and Recall Petitions issued under the *Recall and Initiative Act* and regulations issued under the revised *Election Act*.

By-Elections, 1987 - 1991

Electoral History of British Columbia, 1871 – 1986 concludes with the General Election of 1986. This section begins at that point and documents the by-elections that occurred up to the General Election of 1991.

These were:

 Boundary-Similkameen 	8 June 1988
• Alberni	19 November 1988
• Nanaimo	15 March 1989
• Vancouver-Point Grey	15 March 1989
• Cariboo	20 September 1989
Oak Bay-Gordon Head	13 December 1989

By-Elections 34th Parliament

BOUNDARY-SIMILKAMEEN

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat	
11 May 1988	11 May 1988 26 May 1988		24 June 1988	24 June 1988	
	ELECTION RESULTS				
		Party	Votes	% of Votes	
BARLEE, Bill		NDP	15,778	52.82	
Domer, Rus		GP	361	1.21	
Fox, Russ		SC	10,585	35.44	
Tyabji, Judi		LIB	3,144	10.53	
TOTAL VALID VOTES REJECTED		29,868 218			

REASON: Resignation of MLA James J. Hewitt, 10 December 1987

RETURNING OFFICER: Art Wainwright

ALBERNI

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat
22 October 1988	7 November 1988	19 November 1988	5 December 1988	16 March 1989
	ELECTION RESULTS			
		Party	Votes	% of Votes
Bonfield, Shirley M.		LIB	1,640	14.73
Dryden, George S		SC	3,096	27.80
JANSSEN, Gerard A.		NDP	6,401	57.47
TOTAL VALID VOTES			11,137	
REJECTED		136		

REASON: Resignation of MLA Robert E. Skelly, 10 May 1988

RETURNING OFFICER: Johannes J. Ruissen

By-Elections 34th Parliament — Continued

NANAIMO

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat	
15 February 1989	2 March 1989	15 March 1989	3 April 1989	3 April 1989	
	ELECTION RESULTS				
		Party	Votes	% of Votes	
Brookbank, Ray		LIB	1,908	7.46	
McNabb, Larry		SC	9,062	35.42	
PULLINGER, Jan		NDP	14,613	57.12	
TOTAL VALID VOTES REJECTED		25,583 183			

REASON: Resignation of MLA David D. Stupich, 13 October 1988

RETURNING OFFICER: Shirley Lance

VANCOUVER-POINT GREY

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat
15 February 1989	2 March 1989	15 March 1989	3 April 1989	3 April 1989
	ELECTION RESULT			
		Party	Votes	% of Votes
Kirby, Gerald		NPP	8	0.03
Lesosky, Louis		HRP	16	0.06
Levy, Michael		SC	6,435	24.09
Nylen, Mary Anne		LBN	58	0.22
Parker, Valerie		GP	535	2.00
PERRY, Tom		NDP	14,132	52.91
Seeman, Bob		IND	77	0.29
Wilson, Gordon		LIB	5,449	20.40
TOTAL VALID VOTES		26,710		
REJECTED			96	

REASON: Resignation of MLA Kim Campbell, 27 October 1988

RETURNING OFFICER: Tamarah Moss

By-Elections 34th Parliament — Continued

CARIBOO

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat
23 August 1989	7 September 1989	20 September 1989	6 October 1989	5 April 1990
ELECTION RESULTS				
		Party	Votes	% of Votes
Cullis, Reginald A		IND	565	2.26
LeBourdais, Jerry		IND	146	0.58
Netzel, Darwin L		LIB	952	3.80
Wark, Joe		SC	9,292	37.10
ZIRNHELT, David		NDP	14,091	56.26
TOTAL VALID VOTES REJECTED		25,046 303		

REASON: Death of MLA Alexander V. Fraser, 11 May 1989

RETURNING OFFICER: Robert Court

OAK BAY-GORDON HEAD

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat	
15 November 1989	30 November 1989	13 December 1989	29 December 1989	5 April 1990	
	ELECTION RESULTS				
		Party	Votes	% of Votes	
Brice, Susan		SC	10,430	43.69	
CULL, Elizabeth		NDP	10,807	45.26	
Isaacs, Roland		IND	117	0.49	
Lenz, Garth		GP	328	1.37	
Lesosky, Louis		HRP	20	0.08	
McKivett, Paul		LIB	2,174	9.11	
TOTAL VALID VOTESREJECTED			23,876 242		

REASON: Resignation of MLA Brian Smith, 15 November 1989

RETURNING OFFICE: Joan Giles

35TH GENERAL ELECTION 1991

Dissolution of legislature	19 September 1991
Issue of writs	19 September 1991
Nomination day	4 October 1991
Polling day	
Return day of writs	12 November 1991
Opening of new legislature	17 March 1992

SUMMARY

	Votes	%	Members	Candidates
B.C. Conservative Party	426	0.03	_	4
B.C. Liberal Party	486,208	33.25	17	71
Communist League	92	0.01	_	3
Family Coalition Party	1,310	0.09	_	8
Green Go (Green Wing/Rhino)	93	0.01	_	1
Green Party of British Columbia	12,650	0.86	_	42
The Human Race Party	110	0.01	_	2
Independent	10,281	0.70	_	16
Interdependence Party	62	$.00^{1}$	_	1
Libertarian	860	0.06	_	11
NDP/New Democratic	595,391	40.71	51	75
Reform Party of B.C	2,673	0.18	_	4
Social Credit	351,660	24.05	7	74
Western Canada Concept	651	0.04	_	5
TOTALS	1,462,467	100.00	<u>75</u> ²	317

¹ Rounded to two decimals.

REFERENDUM RESULTS

In conjunction with the General Election of 1991, voters were asked two questions:

A: Should voters be given the right, by legislation, to vote between elections for the removal of their member of the Legislative Assembly?

YES	1,090,023	80.89%
NO	257,522	19.11%
REJECTED	135,363	

B: Should voters be given the right, by legislation, to propose questions that the government of British Columbia must submit to voters by referendum?

YES	1,095,100	83.02%
NO	223,902	16.98%
REIECTED	163 906	

For referendum results by electoral district, refer to the section entitled **Recall and Initiative Referendum** immediately following the General Election results by electoral district.

² Following the recommendations of the Royal Commission on Electoral Boundaries, the number of electoral districts was increased from 52 to 75 and all multi-member electoral districts were eliminated.

Results by Electoral District — 35th General Election 1991

Electoral District	Name ¹	Party ²	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Abbotsford	Cooke, Shirley O.	NDP	5,246	28.51
Tot. 18,402	DE JONG, Harry		6,647	36.12
Rej. 437	Wickham, Calvin A.		6,509	35.37
Alberni	Banford, Alan W.	WCC	206	1.54
Tot. 13,365	JANSSEN, Gerard A.	NDP	7,136	53.39
Rej. 372	Tanner, Peter J.	LIB	2,358	17.64
·	Trumper, Gillian R.	SC	3,665	27.43
Bulkley Valley-Stikine	George, Herbert	IND	957	8.68
Tot. 11,022	Kempf, Jack	IND	2,842	25.79
Rej. 260	Maitland, Alice		3,479	31.56
,	PEMENT, Jackie		3,744	33.97
Burnaby-Edmonds	Brito, Carlos A.	LIB	6,898	32.70
Tot. 21,095	Gruen, Kurt	IND	74	0.35
Rej. 544	Hicks, Debra J. A.	II	77	0.37
,	RANDALL, Fred G.	II	9,947	47.15
	Smith, Elizabeth D.	II	199	0.94
	Wearing, Peter M.		3,900	18.49
Burnaby North	JONES, Barry	NDP	9,809	48.43
Tot. 20,254	Lytle, Jeani P.		194	0.96
Rej. 449	Myre, Gaetan C.	LIB	6,337	31.29
,	Nigro, Carlo	LBN	81	0.40
	Woods, Margaret		3,833	18.92
Burnaby-Willington	French, Susan	LIB	8,023	33.59
Tot. 23,888	Lay, Ken		232	0.97
Rej. 494	SAWICKI, Joan	NDP	10,597	44.36
,	Veitch, Elwood		5,036	21.08
Cariboo North	GARDEN, Frank	NDP	4,919	39.10
Tot. 12,582	Netzel, Darwin L.	LIB	2,317	18.41
Rej. 280	Pearce, Michael L.	SC	4,205	33.42
,	Van Halderen, Elizabeth Betsy		1,141	9.07
Cariboo South	Barnett, Donna	SC	4,730	33.70
Tot. 14,037	Krajczar, Erno		2,567	18.29
Rej 316	Lindenbach, Phil	RP	371	2.64
,	ZIRNHELT, David	NDP	6,369	45.37
Chilliwack	Brown, Gladys Doreen	NDP	5,688	25.68
Tot. 22,149	CHISHOLM, Robert		8,601	38.83
Rej. 408	Jansen, John		7,619	34.40
,	Kisby, Steve	II	241	1.09
Columbia River-	Crandall, Duene	SC	4,362	31.51
Revelstoke	DOYLE, Jim		6,241	45.08
Tot. 13,844	Mellor, Margaret R.		3,241	23.41
Rej. 231	, 0		,	

Electoral District	Name ¹	Party ²	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Comox Valley	Burns, Alicia	LIB	8,754	33.14
Tot. 26,417	Downer, Daniel J.	IND	49	0.19
Rej. 430	Hagan, Stan	SC	6,734	25.49
,	LORD, Margaret	NDP	10,355	39.20
	Porter, Richard P. R.	GP	432	1.63
	Wright, Hillel A.	GG	93	0.35
Coquitlam-Maillardville	Boyer, Marc (Mikael Ballan) A. R	IND	117	0.50
Tot. 23,602	CASHORE, John M.	NDP	11,136	47.18
Rej. 518	Dahlby, Lewis C.	LBN	65	0.27
,	McGuire, Bill F.	LIB	8,930	37.84
	Welsh, Bev A.	SC	3,354	14.21
Cowichan-Ladysmith	Bruce, Graham P.	SC	6,809	29.94
Tot. 22,743	Hennig, Anthony M.	LIB	4,896	21.53
Rej. 374	PULLINGER, Jan	NDP	11,038	48.53
Delta North	Formby, Paul C.	FCP	138	0.66
Tot, 20,876	Frey, Arley Arlington M.	WCC	40	0.19
Rej. 387	Green, Rick	SC	5,252	25.16
	LORTIE, Norm	NDP	8,068	38.65
	MacLeod, Murray	LIB	7,306	35.00
	Wolfe, Benjamin B.	IND	72	0.34
Delta-South	GINGELL, Fred	LIB	8,783	39.82
Tot. 22,055	Kennedy, Brent	NDP	6,559	29.74
Rej. 286	Savage, John L.	SC	6,713	30.44
Esquimalt-Metchosin	SIHOTA, Moe	NDP	13,458	59.16
Tot. 22,748	Jones, Dennis B.	LIB	6,888	30.28
Rej. 400	Pemberton-Billing, Noel V.	SC	2,402	10.56
Fort Langley-Aldergrove	Bradford, Charles	NDP	6,027	30.31
Tot. 19,844	FARRELL-COLLINS, Gary	LIB	8,663	43.57
Rej. 243	Peterson, Dan	SC	4,880	24.54
	Stanford, Lila	IND	227	1.14
	White, William	WCC	87	0.44
Kamloops	CHARBONNEAU, Arthur L.	NDP	8,926	43.67
Tot. 20,440	Kastelen, Kimball B.	LIB	6,033	29.52
Rej. 247	Wallace, Patricia A.	SC	5,481	26.81
Kamloops-North	Caissie, Paul	SC	4,283	28.90
Thompson	Harwood, John E.	LIB	4,694	31.67
Tot. 14,820 Rej. 227	JACKSON, Frederick H.	NDP	5,843	39.43
Kootenay	EDWARDS, Anne	NDP	7,352	46.49
Tot. 15,816	Hills, William (Bill) G.	LIB	3,450	21.81
Rej. 296	Segarty, Terry P.	SC	5,014	31.70
,	0),)		-,	

Electoral District	Name ¹	Party ²	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote	
Langley	Galenzoski, Nora E.	IND	62	0.34	
Tot. 18,354	Gran, Carol M.	SC	5,201	28.34	
Rej. 354	Norman, Barrie O.	FCP	180	0.98	
	STEPHENS, Lynn	LIB	7,149	38.95	
	Thompson, Derrill	NDP	5,762	31.39	
Malahat-Juan de Fuca	Clark, R. E. Bob	SC	2,628	13.53	
Tot. 19,419	Holden, Beverley A.	GP	380	1.96	
Rej. 432	KASPER, Rick F. G.	NDP	8,579	44.18	
,	Lesosky, Louis J.	HRP	68	0.35	
	Lewers, Richard (Dick)	WCC	125	0.64	
	Morino, Tom W.	LIB	7,639	39.34	
Maple Ridge-Pitt	Evancic, Roman	SC	4,986	19.42	
Meadows	Gilmore, Steve	LIB	8,786	34.23	
Tot. 25,668	HARTLEY, Bill	NDP	11,591	45.16	
Rej. 335	Pehota, David B	GP	305	1.19	
Matsqui	DUECK, Peter A.	SC	8,236	43.74	
Tot. 18,830	Jatana, Dave S.	NDP	4,163	22.11	
Rej. 452	Warman, David P.	LIB	6,431	34.15	
Mission-Kent	Bennett, Rose	GP	246	1.44	
Tot. 17,103	Fleming, Austin Paul	LIB	4,579	26.77	
Rej. 377	Jacobsen, Norm	SC	4,556	26.64	
,	Richardson, Edward Chum	IND	63	0.37	
	STREIFEL, Dennis	NDP	7,659	44.78	
Nanaimo	Bentley, David P.	FCP	145	0.67	
Tot. 21,729	Boulogne, Jack	LBN	71	0.33	
Rej. 469	Brookbank, Raymond A.	LIB	7,556	34.77	
,	Garner, Vivian M.	SC	2,480	11.41	
	LOVICK, Dale	NDP	11,135	51.25	
	Shillington, Karen M.	GP	342	1.57	
Nelson-Creston	Dirks, Howard L.	SC	5,739	31.36	
Tot. 18,299	EVANS, Corky	NDP	8,583	46.91	
Rej. 428	Neufeld, Barry L.	LIB	3,510	19.18	
	Wright, Andrea	GP	467	2.55	
New Westminster	Baker, Tom	SC	3,311	15.91	
Tot. 20,812	HAGAN, Anita	NDP	10,384	49.89	
Rej. 395	MacDonald, Lori	LIB	7,117	34.20	
North Coast	Marshall-Lutz, Linda D.	SC	1,818	17.07	
Tot. 10,652	MILLER, A. Dan	NDP	6,365	59.75	
Rej. 312	Sorensen, Rocky L.	LIB	2,469	23.18	
North Island	GABELMANN, Colin S.	NDP	8,427	50.39	
Tot. 16,722	Mascall, Michael	GP	408	2.44	
Rej. 287	McDonell, Roger A.	SC	2,217	13.26	
	Reynen, Dan	LIB	5,670	33.91	

Electoral District	oral District Name ¹		Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote	
North Vancouver-	Baker, Marilyn	SC	4,622	23.69	
Lonsdale	Petrik, Phillip J.	GP	207	1.06	
Tot. 19,508	SCHRECK, David D.	NDP	7,535	38.63	
Rej. 428	Story, Jonathan E.	LBN	85	0.44	
Rej. 420	Sully, Floyd A.	LIB	7,059	36.18	
North Vancouver-	Frampton, Gordon	SC	4,304	18.06	
Seymour	JARVIS, Daniel	LIB	12,120	50.84	
Tot. 23,839	Rennie, Donald	GP	205	0.86	
Rej. 283	Roelants, Dominique	NDP	7,126	29.89	
,	Tomlinson, Bill	LBN	84	0.35	
Oak Bay-Gordon Head	Brice, Susan	SC	5,556	20.91	
Tot. 26,566	CULL, Elizabeth	NDP	10,522	39.61	
Rej. 422	Currie, John	HRP	42	0.16	
	McKivett, Paul	LIB	9,685	36.46	
	Milne, Terry	RP	604	2.27	
	Toth, Kathleen	FCP	157	0.59	
Okanagan-Boundary	BARLEE, N.L. (Bill)	NDP	7,228	46.82	
Tot. 15,439	Leslie, D. Forbes	GP	374	2.42	
Rej. 285	McDonald, Laurie	LIB	3,859	24.99	
,	Stone, Charles (Chuck)	SC	3,978	25.77	
Okanagan East	Chalmers, Larry	SC	7,896	35.41	
Tot. 22,299	Robinson, Eileen M.	NDP	5,825	26.12	
Rej. 466	TYABJI, Judi K.	LIB	8,578	38.47	
Okanagan-Penticton	BEATTIE, Jim	NDP	7,885	34.84	
Tot. 22,632	Cursons, David G.	GP	416	1.84	
Rej. 349	Lamb, E. Jean	LIB	7,437	32.86	
	Messmer, Ivan G.	SC	6,894	30.46	
Okanagan-Vernon	Daniels, (N. O.) Kathleen	IND	275	1.21	
Tot. 22,675	De Chantal, Gilles	NDP	7,720	34.05	
Rej. 401	HANSON, Lyall	SC	8,615	37.99	
	Juli, Ernst	LIB	6,065	26.75	
Okanagan West	Beckett, Valerie J.	NDP	7,361	25.97	
Tot. 28,350	Matlo, Marvin D.	LIB	9,010	31.78	
Rej. 702	Miles, C. Robert	GP	312	1.10	
	SERWA, Clifford J.	SC	11,667	41.15	
Parksville-Qualicum	Crapo, Janet	SC	5,846	22.60	
Tot. 25,863	Cunningham, Augustine J.	FCP	180	0.70	
Rej. 398	KROG, Leonard	NDP	10,408	40.24	
	Patrick, William J.	LIB	9,126	35.29	
	Yacub, Ernie	GP	303	1.17	
Peace North River	Apsassin, Clarence G.	GP	303	2.88	
Tot. 10,510	Folk, Dorothy L.	IND	54	0.51	
Rej. 277	Leahy, A. Jean	NDP	2,347	22.33	
	NEUFELD, Richard	SC	5,758	54.79	
	Rodriguez, Vincent R.	LIB	2,048	19.49	

Electoral District	Name ¹	Party ²	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote	
Peace River South Tot. 12,408 Rej. 308	Bruns, Hermann E. Leoppky, Marcheta D. N. Matheson, Anne WEISGERBER, Jack S	GP LIB NDP SC	435 3,512 3,844 4,617	3.51 28.30 30.98 37.21	
Port Coquitlam Tot. 25,145 Rej. 532	Allard, Jim FARNWORTH, Michael C. Jilg, Ernest R.	SC NDP LIB	3,781 11,435 9,929	15.04 45.47 39.49	
Port Moody-Burnaby Mountain Tot. 21,527 Rej. 384	Billows, Edwin (Ed) COPPING, Barbara E. Demorest, Robert J. Forrest, Andrew E. Hennig, Coleen M.	SC NDP CL LIB GP	3,450 9,821 14 8,091 151	16.03 45.62 0.06 37.59 0.70	
Powell River- Sunshine Coast Tot. 21,004 Rej. 300	Calder, Janet E. Jacob, Lynwood A. Long, Harold White, Howard WILSON, Gordon F.	GP IND SC NDP LIB	161 66 2,174 7,117 11,486	0.77 0.31 10.35 33.88 54.69	
Prince George-Mount Robson Tot. 11,279 Rej. 364	BOONE, Lois R. Kordyban, William W. Strachan, Bruce	NDP IND SC	5,751 1,393 4,135	50.99 12.35 36.66	
Prince George North Tot. 14,113 Rej. 218	Mangan, John RAMSEY, Paul Thompson, Keith	LIB NDP SC	4,506 5,468 4,139	31.93 38.74 29.33	
Prince George-Ominica Tot. 12,787 Rej. 730	FOX, LenRicketts, John	SC NDP	6,656 6,131	52.05 47.95	
Richmond Centre Tot. 18,393 Rej. 390	Airton, Michael Collins, Brian Page, Sheila Pearson, Kerry SYMONS, Douglas	GP NDP SC LBN LIB	108 6,522 3,889 68 7,806	0.59 35.46 21.14 0.37 42.44	
Richmond East Tot. 16,792 Rej. 494	Blaschuk, Larry Dunn, Douglas Fontaine, Ron REID, Linda	SC GP NDP LIB	3,703 123 6,096 6,870	22.05 0.73 36.31 40.91	
Richmond-Steveston Tot. 17,392 Rej. 321	Loenen, Nick Cross, Gary L. Steves, Harold WARNKE, Allan	SC CP NDP LIB	4,609 65 6,054 6,664	26.50 0.37 34.81 38.32	
Rossland-Trail Tot. 16,122 Rej. 337	D'Arcy, Christopher A. CONROY, Ed Price, Angela M. E. Siemens, Walter A.	IND NDP GP SC	3,802 8,340 713 3,267	23.58 51.73 4.42 20.27	

Electoral District	Name ¹	Party ²	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote	
Saanich North and the	Aussenegg, Thomas	FCP	99	0.38	
Islands	Holmes, Richard	SC	2,917	11.24	
Tot. 25,951	Hutchings, Don	RP	557	2.15	
Rej. 307	McMurphy, Elsie	NDP	8,745	33.70	
,	TANNER, Clive	LIB	13,633	52.53	
Saanich South	Christie, Douglas H.	WCC	193	0.84	
Tot. 22,974	Peasland, Lorne	LIB	8,309	36.17	
Rej. 300	PETTER, Andrew	NDP	10,254	44.63	
,	Vandekerkhove, Allen L.	SC	4,218	18.36	
Shuswap	Harris, Connie	GP	422	1.95	
Tot. 21,653	O'NEILL, Shannon	NDP	7,687	35.50	
Rej. 356	Rizzi, Edith E.	SC	6,262	28.92	
	Saab, Michel	LIB	7,282	33.63	
Skeena	GIESBRECHT, Helmut	NDP	5,597	46.67	
Tot. 11,992	Hatton, Juanita	LIB	1,629	13.59	
Rej. 201	Parker, Dave	SC	4,766	39.74	
Surrey-Cloverdale	Gill, Charan	NDP	7,261	30.84	
Tot. 23,541	Higginbotham, Judy	SC	6,920	29.40	
Rej. 430	JONES, Ken	LIB	9,012	38.28	
,	Onderwater, John P.	FCP	260	1.11	
	Smith, Eric	LBN	88	0.37	
Surrey-Green Timbers	Baisch, Gjhrard	GP	89	0.47	
Tot. 18,865	Burtnick, Russ	SC	3,744	19.85	
Rej. 512	HAMMELL, Sue	NDP	8,708	46.16	
,	McMurchy, Archibald	LIB	6,324	33.52	
Surrey-Newton	George, Paul	GP	197	0.82	
Tot. 24,109	Johnston, Rita	SC	7,796	32.33	
Rej. 638	McKinney, A. Charles	LIB	5,923	24.57	
,	PRIDDY, Penny	NDP	10,193	42.28	
Surrey-Whalley	Conway, John A.	SC	2,922	19.27	
Tot. 15,164	Edwards, Daphne E.	LIB	4,862	32.06	
Rej. 340	Popat, Imtiaz N.	GP	137	0.90	
,	SMALLWOOD, Joan K.	NDP	7,243	47.77	
Surrey-White Rock	Barrett, Chip	SC	8,062	28.44	
Tot. 28,342	HURD, Wilf	LIB	11,008	38.84	
Rej. 540	Osatiuk, Donna	NDP	9,063	31.98	
,	Smith, Bill	СР	209	0.74	
Vancouver-Burrard	BARNES, Emery O.	NDP	9,725	50.93	
Tot. 19,094	Bourne, Steven R.	LIB	6,727	35.23	
Rej. 552	Davies, Joy	SC	2,201	11.53	
	Telfer, Andy	GP	441	2.31	

Electoral District	Name ¹	Party ²	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote	
Vancouver-Fairview	Baker, Jonathan	SC	4,060	22.37	
Tot. 18,152	Clarke, John	LBN	98	0.54	
Rej. 520	Parker, Stuart	GP	141	0.78	
,	Raglin, Rod	LIB	5,837	32.15	
	SIMPSON, Bernie	NDP	8,016	44.16	
Vancouver-Hastings	Gedlaman, Don L.	SC	2,589	14.35	
Tot. 18,036	Jarzebiak, Kim Anda	GP	268	1.49	
Rej. 644	Lau, Nancy	LIB	5,092	28.23	
,	MACPHAIL, Joy K.	NDP	10,087	55.93	
Vancouver-Kensington	DOSANJH, Ujjal	NDP	8,323	46.85	
Tot. 17,767	Huey, Gim	SC	4,389	24.70	
Rej. 644	Levis, Colleen	CL	49	0.28	
,	O'Flynn, John	FCP	151	0.85	
	Olynyk, Ted	LIB	4,700	26.45	
	Wagman, Bryan	GP	155	0.87	
Vancouver-Kingsway	CLARK, Glen	NDP	9,292	54.79	
Tot. 16,960	Dmytryshyn, Ned W	CL	29	0.17	
Rej. 599	Horn, Michael G.	GP	137	0.81	
,	Jung, Christie	SC	3,112	18.35	
	White, Elaine M.	LIB	4,390	25.88	
Vancouver-Langara	ANDERSON, Val J.	LIB	7,241	36.95	
Tot. 19,598	Fraser, Russell G.	SC	5,374	27.42	
Rej. 373	Kendall, Peter M.	NDP	6,774	34.57	
	Todd, Kamala J.	GP	134	0.68	
	Weatherston, Malcolm A.	CP	75	0.38	
Vancouver-Little	Berner, Geoff	GP	259	1.13	
Mountain	Maczko, Cheryl M.	IND	90	0.39	
Tot. 22,856	PERRY, Tom	NDP	10,383	45.43	
Rej. 562	Stebner, Michael K.	LIB	8,180	35.79	
	White, Sharon E.	SC	3,944	17.26	
Vancouver-Mount	Gnissios, Todd	LIB	3,137	19.65	
Pleasanat	HARCOURT, Mike	NDP	10,108	63.32	
Tot. 15,962	Latek, Jacek (Jack)	IP	62	0.39	
Rej. 600	Marsden, John Wayne	LBN	80	0.50	
•	Vannatter, Randy	SC	2,143	13.43	
	Watson, Grant	GP	432	2.71	
Vancouver-Point Grey	Burke, Barry J.	LIB	9,022	36.80	
Tot. 24,516	Green, Betty E. L.	IND	138	0.56	
Rej. 367	Kohnert, Nicole C.	GP	388	1.58	
,	MARZARI, Darlene R.	NDP	12,076	49.26	
	Saxton, Joan M.	LBN	75	0.31	
	Wright, Richard J.	SC	2,817	11.49	

Electoral District	Name ¹	Party ²	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Vancouver-Quilchena	COWIE, Art	LIB	11,373	49.53
Tot. 22,960	Hertzog, Stuart P.	NDP	6,172	26.88
Rej. 309	Mowat, Doug.	SC	5,113	22.27
	Parker, Valerie E.	GP	302	1.32
Victoria-Beacon Hill	Bill, Karen	LIB	7,434	32.59
Tot. 22,813	BREWIN, Gretchen	NDP	10,939	47.95
Rej. 629	Hansen, Suzanne	SC	3,712	16.27
,	Timney, Michael	GP	728	3.19
Victoria-Hillside	BLENCOE, Robin	NDP	11,117	51.39
Tot. 21,633	Skillings, Patrick	SC	2,714	12.55
Rej. 584	Van Oostdam, Jay	GP	569	2.63
,	Wiens, Elmer	LIB	7,233	33.43
West Vancouver-	Audain, Tunya	LBN	65	0.28
Capilano	Chaplin, Helen	NDP	3,740	16.05
Tot. 23,300	DALTON, Jeremy	LIB	13,194	56.63
Rej. 343	Reynolds, John	SC	6,161	26.44
,	Santen, Marcia	GP	140	0.60
West Vancouver-	Giles, Brian D.	NDP	4,506	23.52
Garibaldi	Glynn-Morris, Rodney C.	SC	3,020	15.76
Tot. 19,162	Millerd, Philip W. F.	GP	454	2.37
Rej. 257	MITCHELL, David J.	LIB	11,182	58.35
Yale-Lillooet	LALI, Harry S.	NDP	7,740	52.31
Tot. 14,797 Rej. 697	Rabbitt, James T.	SC	7,057	47.69

 $^{^{\}rm 1}$ The successful candidate's surname appears in capital letters. $^{\rm 2}$ See Part Four for the full names of political parties which appear here in abbreviated form.

Recall and Initiative Referendum — 35th General Election — 17 October 1991 Results by Electoral District

QUESTION A — RECALL:

Should the voters be given the right, by legislation, to vote between elections for the removal of their member of the Legislative Assembly?

their member of the Legislative Assembly?								
Electoral District	Yes	% of Valid Votes	No	% of Valid Votes	Total Valid Votes	Reject	Total Ballots Considered	
Abbotsford	14,214	82.46%	3,023	17.54%	17,237	1,571	18,808	
Alberni		83.81%	1,949	16.19%	12,041	1,716	13,757	
Bulkley Valley-Stikine		80.18%	1,996	19.82%	10,073	1,220	11,293	
Burnaby-Edmonds	1	82.57%	3,378	17.43%	19,381	2,249	21,630	
Burnaby North		83.22%	3,099	16.78%	18,473	2,173	20,646	
Burnaby-Willingdon	18,091	81.90%	3,999	18.10%	22,090	2,215	24,305	
Cariboo North		85.65%	1,658	14.35%	11,557	1,294	12,851	
Cariboo South	1	82.50%	2,249	17.50%	12,855	1,439	14,294	
Chilliwack	1	82.48%	3,510	17.52%	20,037	2,372	22,409	
Columbia River-Revelstoke		81.78%	2,281	18.22%	12,518	1,531	14,049	
Comox Valley		75.70%	5,918	24.30%	24,353	2,424	26,777	
Coquitlam-Maillardville		82.86%	3,788	17.14%	22,099	2,026	24,125	
Cowichan-Ladysmith		80.54%	4,024	19.46%	20,626	2,319	22,995	
Delta North		84.74%	3,022	15.26%	19,806	1,517	21,323	
Delta South		82.11%	3,770	17.89%	21,069	1,226	22,295	
Esquimalt-Metchosin		82.68%	3,674	17.32%	21,213	1,915	23,128	
Fort Langley-Aldergrove		84.32%	2,975	15.68%	18,973	1,253	20,226	
Kamloops		76.55%	4,471	23.45%	19,066	1,587	20,653	
Kamloops-North Thompson	1	77.86%	3,093	22.14%	13,969	1,135	15,104	
Kootenay		81.90%	2,602	18.10%	14,372	1,651	16,023	
Langley		83.97%	2,731	16.03%	17,041	1,628	18,669	
Malahat-Juan de Fuca	1	83.69%	2,911	16.31%	17,844	2,046	19,890	
Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows		83.01%	4,073	16.99%	23,970	1,977	25,947	
Matsqui		81.91%	3,056	18.09%	16,894	2,461	19,355	
Mission-Kent	· ·	80.24%	3,117	19.76%	15,774	1,680	17,454	
Nanaimo	· ·	79.64%	4,069	20.36%	19,988	2,189	22,177	
Nelson-Creston		78.50%	3,597	21.50%	16,728	1,869	18,597	
New Westminster		81.39%	3,560	18.61%	19,128	2,019	21,147	
North Coast		80.83%	1,810	19.17%	9,441	1,288	10,729	
North Island		78.53%	3,332	21.47%	15,517	1,385	16,902	
North Vancouver-Lonsdale	1	83.53%	3,000	16.47%	18,214	1,749	19,963	
North Vancouver-Seymour	1	80.68%	4,423	19.32%	22,892	1,224	24,116	
Oak Bay-Gordon Head		73.08%	6,624	26.92%	24,606	2,299	26,905	
Okanagan-Boundary		77.94%	3,008	22.06%	13,635	2,013	15,648	
Okanagan East		81.05%	3,852	18.95%	20,329	2,324	22,653	
Okanagan-Penticton		78.04%	4,369	21.96%	19,898	3,045	22,943	
Okanagan-Vernon		79.65%	4,242	20.35%	20,844	2,206	23,050	
Okanagan West		80.58%	4,929	19.42%	25,376	3,480	28,856	
Parksville-Qualicum		79.54%	4,852	20.46%	23,718	2,499	26,217	
Peace River North		82.66%	1,657	17.34%	9,554	1,275	10,829	
Peace River South	1 '	86.15%	1,561	13.85%	11,267	1,436	12,703	
Port Coquitlam		84.68%	3,606	15.32%	23,537	1,430	25,527	
Port Moody-Burnaby Mtn.	17,662	82.00%	3,877	18.00%	21,539	430	21,969	
Li ore widody Darriddy Willi	17,002	02.00 /0	0,011	10.00 /0	21,007	TJU	21,707	

${\tt QUESTION} \; {\tt A-RECALL-Continued}$

Electoral District	Yes	% of Valid Votes	No	% of Valid Votes	Total Valid Votes	Reject	Total Ballots Considered
Powell River-Sunshine Coast	14,294	77.40%	4,174	22.60%	18,468	1,606	20,074
Prince George-Mount Robson	8,668	83.05%	1,769	16.95%	10,437	1,201	11,638
Prince George North	11,553	83.09%	2,351	16.91%	13,904	368	14,272
Prince George-Omineca	10,170	82.66%	2,133	17.34%	12,303	1,139	13,442
Richmond Centre	13,260	80.74%	3,164	19.26%	16,424	1,484	17,908
Richmond East	12,764	82.34%	2,737	17.66%	15,501	1,757	17,258
Richmond-Steveston	13,098	80.00%	3,275	20.00%	16,373	1,314	17,687
Rossland-Trail	11,886	81.92%	2,624	18.08%	14,510	1,653	16,163
Saanich North and the Islands	18,911	77.40%	5,523	22.60%	24,434	1,786	26,220
Saanich South	17,153	79.15%	4,518	20.85%	21,671	1,527	23,198
Shuswap	15,531	79.46%	4,014	20.54%	19,545	2,448	21,993
Skeena	8,668	78.86%	2,324	21.14%	10,992	1,031	12,023
Surrey-Cloverdale	18,698	84.27%	3,490	15.73%	22,188	1,726	23,914
Surrey-Green Timbers	15,171	86.88%	2,291	13.12%	17,462	1,869	19,331
Surrey-Newton	19,214	85.88%	3,158	14.12%	22,372	2,296	24,668
Surrey-Whalley	12,110	86.32%	1,919	13.68%	14,029	1,339	15,368
Surrey-White Rock	21,702	82.62%	4,566	17.38%	26,268	2,622	28,890
Vancouver-Burrard	14,233	79.22%	3,734	20.78%	17,967	1,613	19,580
Vancouver-Fraserview	13,893	84.05%	2,636	15.95%	16,529	2,054	18,583
Vancouver-Hastings	13,562	84.10%	2,564	15.90%	16,126	2,526	18,652
Vancouver-Kensington	13,718	85.16%	2,390	14.84%	16,108	2,204	18,312
Vancouver-Kingsway	13,033	86.16%	2,093	13.84%	15,126	2,463	17,589
Vancouver-Langara	14,846	80.24%	3,656	19.76%	18,502	1,454	19,956
Vancouver-Little Mountain	16,046	76.13%	5,032	23.87%	21,078	2,166	23,244
Vancouver-Mount Pleasant	11,635	81.82%	2,586	18.18%	14,221	2,310	16,531
Vancouver-Point Grey	16,536	71.62%	6,553	28.38%	23,089	1,623	24,712
Vancouver-Quilchena	15,498	71.60%	6,148	28.40%	21,646	1,593	23,239
Victoria-Beacon Hill	15,671	75.38%	5,117	24.62%	20,788	2,599	23,387
Victoria-Hillside	16,102	79.59%	4,128	20.41%	20,230	1,976	22,206
West Vancouver-Capilano	16,842	78.01%	4,747	21.99%	21,589	1,705	23,294
West Vancouver-Garibaldi	14,168	79.01%	3,765	20.99%	17,933	1,376	19,309
Yale-Lillooet	11,225	83.14%	2,277	16.86%	13,502	1,883	15,385
Totals	1,090,023	80.89%	257,522	<u>19.11%</u>	1,347,545	135,363	1,482,908

Yes No Rejected	% Total Ballots % Total Ballots % Total Ballots	73.51% 17.37% 9.13%
Total	70 Iotal Ballots	100.00%

QUESTION B — INITIATIVE:

Should the voters be given the right, by legislation, to propose questions that the government of British Columbia must submit to voters by referendum?

		% of		% of	Total		Total	No. of
Electoral District	Yes	Valid Votes	No	Valid Votes	Valid Votes	Reject	Ballots Considered	Registered Voters
Abbotsford	14,335	84.78%	2,573	15.22%	16,908	1,900	18,808	25,630
Alberni	10,084	86.36%	1,593	13.64%	11,677	2,080	13,757	18,047
Bulkley Valley-Stikine	8,221	83.53%	1,621	16.47%	9,842	1,451	11,293	16,061
Burnaby-Edmonds	15,944	84.35%	2,959	15.65%	18,903	2,727	21,630	29,762
Burnaby North	15,359	84.90%	2,731	15.10%	18,090	2,556	20,646	27,516
Burnaby-Willingdon		84.03%	3,456	15.97%	21,641	2,664	24,305	32,933
Cariboo North	9,923	87.86%	1,371	12.14%	11,294	1,557	12,851	17,584
Cariboo South	10,746	85.78%	1,781	14.22%	12,527	1,767	14,294	19,679
Chilliwack	16,642	85.33%	2,862	14.67%	19,504	2,905	22,409	30,867
Columbia River-Revelstoke	10,495	86.24%	1,674	13.76%	12,169	1,880	14,049	18,822
Comox Valley	18,996	79.72%	4,833	20.28%	23,829	2,948	26,777	34,306
Coquitlam-Maillardville	18,468	85.19%	3,210	14.81%	21,678	2,447	24,125	32,082
Cowichan-Ladysmith		83.89%	3,247	16.11%	20,152	2,843	22,995	29,080
Delta North	16,385	84.00%	3,122	16.00%	19,507	1,816	21,323	27,051
Delta South	16,880	81.16%	3,918	18.84%	20,798	1,497	22,295	27,632
Esquimalt-Metchosin		84.33%	3,268	15.67%	20,859	2,269	23,128	31,524
Fort Langley-Aldergrove		85.95%	2,615	14.05%	18,615	1,611	20,226	25,990
Kamloops	15,257	81.63%	3,433	18.37%	18,690	1,963	20,653	28,872
Kamloops-North Thompson		82.13%	2,439	17.87%	13,651	1,453	15,104	20,328
Kootenay		87.39%	1,758	12.61%	13,945	2,078	16,023	21,792
Langley		85.42%	2,431	14.58%	16,675	1,994	18,669	24,539
Malahat-Juan de Fuca	15,070	85.70%	2,514	14.30%	17,584	2,306	19,890	25,841
Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows	20,090	85.52%	3,401	14.48%	23,491	2,456	25,947	33,760
Matsqui		85.35%	2,397	14.65%	16,360	2,995	19,355	26,333
Mission-Kent	12,874	83.45%	2,553	16.55%	15,427	2,027	17,454	23,556
Nanaimo	16,154	82.50%	3,426	17.50%	19,580	2,597	22,177	29,778
Nelson-Creston	13,464	82.66%	2,824	17.34%	16,288	2,309	18,597	23,234
New Westminster	15,731	84.07%	2,981	15.93%	18,712	2,435	21,147	29,323
North Coast	7,759	84.05%	1,472	15.95%	9,231	1,498	10,729	16,036
North Island	12,793	84.14%	2,412	15.86%	15,205	1,697	16,902	23,936
North Vancouver-Lonsdale	15,275	85.51%	2,588	14.49%	17,863	2,100	19,963	26,645
North Vancouver-Seymour		81.33%	4,229	18.67%	22,649	1,467	24,116	30,346
Oak Bay-Gordon Head		73.38%	6,420	26.62%	24,121	2,784	26,905	32,453
Okanagan-Boundary		80.36%	2,594	19.64%	13,205	2,594	15,648	20,379
Okanagan East	16,854	84.98%	2,980	15.02%	19,834	2,819	22,653	30,451
Okanagan-Penticton	15,560	80.70%	3,721	19.30%	19,281	3,662	22,943	29,602
Okanagan-Vernon	16,961	83.65%	3,314	16.35%	20,275	2,775	23,050	30,341
Okanagan West	20,684	84.23%	3,874	15.77%	24,558	4,298	28,856	38,523
Parksville-Qualicum	18,999	81.66%	4,266	18.34%	23,265	2,952	26,217	33,142
Peace River North	7,959	85.52%	1,348	14.48%	9,307	1,522	10,829	15,407
Peace River South	9,759	88.86%	1,223	11.14%	10,982	1,721	12,703	18,238
Port Coquitlam	20,260	86.99%	3,029	13.01%	23,289	2,238	25,527	33,588
Port Moody-Burnaby Mtn	17,895	84.03%	3,402	15.97%	21,297	672	21,969	29,917
Powell River-Sunshine Coast	14,847	82.40%	3,171	17.60%	18,018	2,056	20,074	25,788
Prince George-Mount Robson	8,588	84.64%	1,559	15.36%	10,147	1,491	11,638	16,797
Prince George North	11,498	84.35%	2,133	15.65%	13,631	641	14,272	20,021

QUESTION B — INITIATIVE — Continued

Electoral District	Yes	% of Valid Votes	No	% of Valid Votes	Total Valid Votes	Reject	Total Ballots Considered	No. of Registered Voters
Prince George-Omineca	10,188	84.29%	1,899	15.71%	12,087	1,355	13,442	19,300
Richmond Centre	13,347	82.71%	2,791	17.29%	16,138	1,770	17,908	25,240
Richmond East	12,782	84.41%	2,361	15.59%	15,143	2,115	17,258	22,809
Richmond-Steveston	13,222	81.97%	2,909	18.03%	16,131	1,556	17,687	22,805
Rossland-Trail	11,989	85.17%	2,088	14.83%	14,077	2,086	16,163	21,444
Saanich North and the Islands	18,816	78.37%	5,192	21.63%	24,008	2,212	26,220	31,903
Saanich South	17,053	79.55%	4,383	20.45%	21,436	1,762	23,198	29,141
Shuswap	15,661	82.58%	3,304	17.42%	18,965	3,028	21,993	28,800
Skeena	8,987	83.63%	1,759	16.37%	10,746	1,277	12,023	16,828
Surrey-Cloverdale	18,600	85.44%	3,169	14.56%	21,769	2,145	23,914	30,462
Surrey-Green Timbers	14,733	86.38%	2,324	13.62%	17,057	2,274	19,331	26,899
Surrey-Newton	18,928	86.18%	3,035	13.82%	21,963	2,705	24,668	32,444
Surrey-Whalley	11,933	86.63%	1,841	13.37%	13,774	1,594	15,368	22,218
Surrey-White Rock	20,960	81.74%	4,681	18.26%	25,641	3,249	28,890	35,942
Vancouver-Burrard	14,232	80.18%	3,518	19.82%	17,750	1,830	19,580	29,952
Vancouver-Fraserview	13,713	85.01%	2,418	14.99%	16,131	2,452	18,583	25,550
Vancouver-Hastings	13,343	85.34%	2,292	14.66%	15,635	3,017	18,652	26,368
Vancouver-Kensington	13,428	86.34%	2,124	13.66%	15,552	2,760	18,312	25,521
Vancouver-Kingsway	12,688	87.26%	1,852	12.74%	14,540	3,049	17,589	24,784
Vancouver-Langara	14,901	81.73%	3,332	18.27%	18,233	1,723	19,956	27,493
Vancouver-Little Mountain	16,366	78.75%	4,419	21.25%	20,785	2,459	23,244	32,915
Vancouver-Mount Pleasant	11,530	84.25%	2,156	15.75%	13,686	2,845	16,531	25,868
Vancouver-Point Grey	16,972	74.38%	5,847	25.62%	22,819	1,893	24,712	33,856
Vancouver-Quilchena	15,568	72.91%	5,783	27.09%	21,351	1,888	23,239	28,941
Victoria-Beacon Hill	15,567	76.80%	4,703	23.20%	20,270	3,117	23,387	31,652
Victoria-Hillside	16,146	81.58%	3,645	18.42%	19,791	2,415	22,206	30,280
West Vancouver-Capilano	16,764	78.68%	4,542	21.32%	21,306	1,988	23,294	29,933
West Vancouver-Garibaldi	14,258	80.45%	3,464	19.55%	17,722	1,587	19,309	24,706
Yale-Lillooet	11,378	86.53%	1,771	13.47%	13,149	2,236	15,385	21,468
Totals	1,095,100	83.02%	223,902	16.98%	1,319,002	163,906	1,482,908	1,989,054

YesNo	% Total Ballots % Total Ballots	73.85% 15.10%
Rejected	% Total Ballots	11.05%
Total		100.00%

By-Elections 35th Parliament

MATSQUI

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat
20 January 1994	4 February 1994	17 February 1994	11 March 1994	14 March 1994
]	ELECTION RESULTS	3	
		Party	Votes	% of Votes
Caine, Victoria		IND	36	0.28
DE JONG, Michael (J	LIB	5,464	41.77
			616	4.71
Gamble, Ron		RP	1,250	9.55
McCarthy, Grace Ma	ry	SC	5,422	41.45
Peddemors, J. Hendi	ie	HM	18	0.14
Toth, Kathleen		FCP	275	2.10
TOTAL VALID VO	TES		13,081	
REJECTED			171	

REASON: Resignation of MLA Peter A. Dueck, 30 November 1993.

RETURNING OFFICER: Chuck Wiebe.

VANCOUVER-QUILCHENA

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat
20 January 1994	4 February 1994	17 February 1994	7 March 1994	14 March 1994
		ELECTION RESULTS		
		Party	Votes	% of Votes
Boytinck, Walter		LBN	90	0.83
CAMPBELL, Gordor	1	LIB	7,396	67.77
		FCP	89	0.82
McDonald, Ronald		GDRR	61	0.56
Parker, Stuart		GP	395	3.62
Wain, Fiona		NDP	1,346	12.33
Weissenbacher, Sonja	l	SC	1,536	14.07
TOTAL VALID VO	TES		10,913	
REJECTED			70	

REASON: Resignation of MLA Art Cowie, 9 November 1993.

RETURNING OFFICER: Peta Harakal.

ABBOTSFORD

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat
5 April 1995	21 April 1995	3 May 1995	19 May 1995	24 May 1995
]	ELECTION RESULTS	3	
		Party	Votes	% of Votes
Goodfellow, Cathy		PDA	391	3.00
Horn, Michael		GP	75	0.57
Keith, Rollie		NDP	1,170	8.96
Kilpatrick, Bill		RP	5,297	40.58
Mellalieu, Chris R		SC	161	1.23
Skilnick, Kenneth D.		PC	171	1.31
Toth, Kathleen M		FCP	201	1.54
	n		5,588	42.81
TOTAL VALID VO	TES		13,054	
REJECTED			112	

REASON: Resignation of MLA Harry De Jong, 1 November 1994.

RETURNING OFFICER: Stan Forbes.

36th General Election 1996

Dissolution of legislature	30 April 1996
Issue of writs	30 April 1996
Nomination day	15 May 1996
Polling day	28 May 1996
Return day of writs	19 June 1996
Opening of new legislature	25 June 1966

SUMMARY

	Votes	%	Members	Candidates
British Columbia Liberal Party	661,929	41.82	33	75
British Columbia Libertarian Party	2,041	0.13		17
British Columbia Social Credit Party	6,276	0.40		38
The Family Coalition Party of British Columbia	4,150	0.26	_	14
Green Party Political Association of British Columbia	31,511	1.99		71
Natural Law Party	2,919	0.18		38
New Democratic Party of B.C.	624,395	39.45	39	75
Progressive Democratic Alliance	90,797	5.74	1	66
Reform Party of British Columbia	146,734	9.27	2	75
Other ¹	11,952	0.76	<u>—</u>	_44
TOTALS	<u>1,582,704</u>	100.00	<u>75</u>	<u>513</u>

¹ Includes Common Sense, Community, Family Party (CCF – 5 candidates), Communist Party of British Columbia (COMM – 3 candidates), Progressive Conservative Party of British Columbia (CP – 8 candidates), Western Canada Concept Party of B.C (WCC – 5 candidates), Independent candidates (IND – 20 candidates) and 3 candidates who were not endorsed by a registered political party and who did not identify themselves as independent.

Results by Electoral District — 36th General Election 1996

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Abbotsford	Anderson, Merilyn	PDA	1,126	5.14
Tot. 21,889	Berner, Geoff		274	1.25
Rej. 72	Temple, Bruce	NDP	5,405	24.69
,	VAN DONGEN, John	LIB	10,998	50.25
	Warawa, Mark		4,086	18.67
Alberni	Angus, Karl		72	0.51
Tot. 14,223	Hansen, V.	RP	823	5.79
Rej. 86	JANSSEN, Gerard A.M.	NDP	7,398	52.01
	Lapeyrouse, Kathleen	NLP	58	0.41
	Rebar, Ingrid Helen	PDA	578	4.06
	Sperling, Andre		195	1.37
	Trumper, Gillian	LIB	5,099	35.85
Bulkley Valley-Stikine	Barendregt, Peter	SC	155	1.20
Tot. 12,908	Beach, Pat		3,726	28.87
Rej. 52	GOODACRE, Bill		4,779	37.02
,	Hartwell, Sharon Lorraine		624	4.83
	Hertzog, Stuart		151	1.17
	Zemenchik, Bill		3,473	26.91
Burnaby-Edmonds	Brito, Carlos	RP	1,008	4.72
Tot. 21,341	Harvey, Guy	NLP	77	0.36
Rej. 172	Hawthorne, Eric		387	1.81
,	Narain, Suraj		120	0.56
	RANDALL, Fred		9,912	46.45
	St. Denis, Judy		8,770	41.10
	Schwermer, John		1,067	5.00
Burnaby North	Bosa, Daniela	RP	1,081	5.51
Tot. 19,631	CALENDINO, Pietro	NDP	8,926	45.47
Rej. 180	Hetherington, Tom	GP	395	2.01
,	Lee, Richard T.		8,160	41.57
	Lee, Richard A.Y.		976	4.97
	Nadeau, Derek	NLP	62	0.31
	Nigro, Carlo	LBN	31	0.16
Burnaby-Willingdon	Keithley, Joe	GP	458	1.99
Tot. 23,061	Macdonald, Peter B.	CP	190	0.82
Rej. 183	Nuraney, John		9,678	41.97
,	Reekie, Thomas	PDA	1,161	5.03
	SAWICKI, Joan	NDP	10,501	45.54
	Sodhi, Sunny G.		999	4.33
	Toth, Henriette	NLP	74	0.32
Cariboo North	Eyford, Robert	RP	2,561	18.92
Tot. 13,539	Garden, Frank	NDP	5,180	38.26
Rej. 63	Mencero, Phillip	GP	168	1.24
,	Steines, Ric	LBN	97	0.71
	WILSON, John D.		5,533	40.87

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Cariboo South	Pannia Danald Street	CP	267	1.74
Tot. 15,373	Rennie, Donald Stuart Wolbers, Jon	I	267 2,684	17.46
•			6,050	39.35
Rej. 69	Worthy, Dave ZIRNHELT, David		6,372	41.45
Chilliwack	Chisholm, Bob	N.A.	5,736	23.44
Tot. 24,467	Keith, Rollie	NDP	5,989	24.48
Rej. 107	Kisby, Steve	GP	232	0.95
•	PENNER, Barry	LIB	9,273	37.90
	Wimpney, Bill	RP	3,237	13.23
Columbia River-	DOYLE, Jim	NDP	6,264	42.52
Revelstoke	Herman, Dave	I	282	1.91
Tot. 14,733	Mcmahon, Brian Allan	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	5,172	35.11
Rej. 74	Pinchak, Steve V		2,687	18.24
	Smith, Rhonda	I	270	1.83
	Stairs, Sonia	NLP	58	0.39
Comox Valley	Burns, Alicia	IND	598	1.93
Tot. 30,939	Cursons, Meaghan	GP	1,296	4.19
Rej. 115	Doll, Delbert	RP	3,451	11.15
	GILLESPIE, Evelyn	NDP	13,230	42.77
-	Krell, John	I	398	1.29
	Lawlor, Joe		1,039	3.36
	Macdonald, Bill		10,721	34.65
	Ramsey, Angus	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	149	0.48
	Wright, Hillel Alan	IND	57	0.18
Coquitlam-Maillardville	Broughton, Angela		1,289	5.47
Tot. 23,551	CASHORE, John	I	10,812	45.91
Rej. 115	Gallagher, Dave		133	0.57
	Gillespie, Rob		224	0.95
	Hicks, Debra		96	0.41
	Van Schaik, Richard		123	0.52
	Welsh, Bev Wilson, Maxine		1,434 9,440	6.09 40.08
Covichen Ladvemith			1.450	5.04
Cowichan-Ladysmith	Johnston, Perry JamesPULLINGER, Jan		1,459	5.94 49.85
Tot. 24,570 Rej. 117			12,249 7,783	31.68
Rej. 117	Smith, RayWalker, Tom	RP	2,434	9.91
	West, Julian	GP	645	2.62
Delta North	Chiotakos, Angela	GP	347	1.70
Tot. 20,499	Grewal, Gurmant		755	3.69
Rej. 120	Lortie, Norm	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	8,657	42.34
1.0,. 120	MASI, Reni	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	9,305	45.50
	Pike, Ross		1,385	6.77

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Delta South	Diakov Croa	GP	333	1.46
Tot. 22,822	Dickey, Greg		1,371	6.01
-	Garvey, KevinGINGELL, Fred			58.78
Rej. 76	Hessels, Jim		13,415 304	1.33
			5,984	26.22
	Macdonald, Lloyd			
	1		200	0.88
	Tobias, Donna M.	PDA	1,215	5.32
Esquimalt-Metchosin	Charlesworth, Adam	GP	376	1.62
Tot. 23,232	Danyluck, Sylvia	NLP	60	0.26
Rej. 92	Davidson, Scotty		1,179	5.08
,	Landon, Heather		6,770	29.14
	O'Neill, Bob		35	0.15
	Shebib, David Michael		58	0.25
	SIHOTA, MOE		13,833	59.54
	Whims, Ron		921	3.96
Fort Langley-Aldergrove	Bradford, Charles	NDP	7,369	29.03
Tot. 25,383	COLEMAN, Rich		12,005	47.30
Rej. 124	Farquhar, Bob		1,737	6.84
16). 121	Salmon, Amy		472	1.86
	Stanford, Lila O.		316	1.24
	Twidale, John		3,484	13.73
Vamloons	Endean, Ken	SC	508	2.22
Kamloops				
Tot. 22,878	Fisher, Deborah Jean		1,241	5.42
Rej. 172	Leong, Joe		1,721	7.53
	McGREGOR, Cathy		10,135	44.30
	Singh, Gur	LIB	9,273	40.53
Kamloops-North Thompson	Child, Alan	GP	401	2.38
Tot. 16,837	Forseth, Alan		1,710	10.16
Rej. 118	Jackson, Fred		6,945	41.25
,	KRUEGER, Kevin		7,313	43.43
	Quinn, Steve		468	2.78
Kootenay	Brennan, Casey	GP	363	2.19
Tot. 16,581	Hanni, Wilf		3,718	22.42
Rej. 62	Makar, Marko	IND	215	1.30
1.Cj. 02	Tarr, Ron		5,887	35.50
	WALSH, Erda		6,398	38.59
Langlay			262	1.32
Langley Tot. 19,901	Gotia-Walters, Fely			16.20
	Lopushinsky, Joe		3,224	6.00
Rej. 125	Macdonald, Paul		1,195 5,705	
	Richter, Kim		5,795	29.12
	STEPHENS, Lynn		9,277	46.62
	Thompson, Ian B.	SC	148	0.74

Results by Electoral District — 36th General Election 1996 — Continued

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Malahat-Juan de Fuca	Cools, Bill	RP	1,887	8.59
Tot. 21,973	Elcock, Mike	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	7,556	34.39
Rej. 106	French, Dode		84	0.38
Kej. 100	Holden, Beverley		601	2.73
	KASPER, Rick		10,686	48.63
			1,061	4.83
	Launay, Donna Lesosky, Louis James		98	0.45
Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows	Dahlby, Lewis Clarke	LBN	158	0.56
Tot. 28,099	Deacon, Matt	NLP	90	0.32
	HARTLEY, Bill	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	12,946	46.07
110). 107	Hennick, Richard		464	1.65
	Neufeld, Peter		2,011	7.16
	Stewart, Ken		10,960	39.01
	Walsh, Nick		1,470	5.23
Matsqui	Charrois, Deb	NDP	5,349	24.93
	DE JONG, Michael		10,903	50.81
	Gibson, Simon		4,405	20.53
rej. 100	Toth, Kathleen Mary		385	1.79
	Wagar, Sam		216	1.01
	Wilson, Georgina		199	0.93
Mission-Kent	Grages, Hans	GP	324	1.74
	Neufeld, Abe		7,112	38.15
	Richardson, Chum		113	0.60
Tej. "	Sebastian, Heather		1,243	6.67
	Sleigh, Frank		1,618	8.68
	STREIFEL, Dennis		8,232	44.16
Nanaimo	Chase, Mark	LBN	113	0.49
	Korpan, Gary Richard	LIB	7,672	33.36
	LOVICK, Dale		11,210	48.75
)	Podetz, Vicki		311	1.35
	Shepp, Garry Donald		1,867	8.12
	Shillington, Karen Margo		486	2.11
	Weston, David J.	PDA	1,337	5.82
Nelson-Creston	Dirks, Howard	LIB	6,434	31.48
Tot. 20.442	EVANS, Corky	NDP	9,179	44.90
	Gaschnitz, Brian Dale	RP	2,114	10.34
16). 02	Shadrack, Andy	GP	2,282	11.16
	Taves, Ruth Anne	NLP	73	0.36
	Zacharias, Brian John		360	1.76
New Westminster	Bauch, George	NLP	107	0.48
	BOWBRICK, Graeme	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	10,418	46.69
	Crossman, Arthur		142	0.64
,- 200	Horn, Michael G.		488	2.19
	Sahlin, Craig		1,121	5.02
	Sparkes, Helen	LIB	8,591	38.50
Tot. 28,099 Rej. 137 Matsqui Tot. 21,457 Rej. 158 Mission-Kent Tot. 18,642 Rej. 99 Nanaimo Tot. 22,996 Rej. 179	Stromgren, Brian			6.48
	Juoingien, Dhan	Kr	1,446	0.48

	·	Valid Votes	Popular Vote
Odd	LIB	2,899	25.75
arence		830	7.37
, Patrick		232	2.06
?, Dan		7,298	64.82
Gerry	LIB	6,781	37.04
Mark	PDA	887	4.84
Dave	RP	1,776	9.70
n, Don	GP	479	2.62
ΓSON, Glenn	NDP	8,385	45.80
Renee		417	2.07
Stanley	RP	1,241	6.17
Sheila		93	0.46
Royston	PDA	1,736	8.63
Anthony	LBN	149	0.74
David	NDP	7,151	35.56
RED, Katherine		9,325	46.37
Mark	GP	645	2.57
Daniel	LIB	14,165	56.35
, Michelle	NDP	6,676	26.56
y, Jonn R	SC	105	0.42
David	PDA	1,713	6.81
h, Caroline		1,737	6.91
Deborah	NLP	44	0.17
on, Bill		54	0.21
_enora		566	2.14
G, Ida	LIB	12,340	46.59
zabeth	NDP	11,700	44.17
John Ernest	IND	48	0.18
asey	IND	35	0.13
son, Gordon		937	3.54
an		56	0.21
, John		48	0.18
tis, Nicholas		35	0.13
k, Paul		675	2.55
ry	NLP	47	0.18
PFF, Bill		7,011	38.35
3ill		6,984	38.20
, Doug		183	1.00
d, Kevin	PDA	775	4.24
, Garry		2,810	15.37
		356	1.95
Gregg	NLP	163	0.89
, Stamata	RP	3,116	12.74
		347	1.42
		5,176	21.17
		6,432	26.30
CK, John	LIB	9,382	38.37
]]	David Gregg , Stamata , Dave Janet Elizabeth udi	David GP Gregg NLP n, Stamata RP s, Dave GP Janet Elizabeth NDP judi PDA	David GP 356 Gregg NLP 163 n, Stamata RP 3,116 s, Dave GP 347 Janet Elizabeth NDP 5,176 judi PDA 6,432

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Okanagan-Penticton	Beattie, Jim	NDP	9,092	36.73
Tot. 24,750	Krauter, Loretta		2,976	12.02
Rej. 105	Naegel, Harry Philip	l l	464	1.87
16). 166	Ross, Carol		113	0.46
	Thoen, Johannes Laurentius		1,444	5.83
	THORPE, Rick		10,661	43.07
Okanagan-Vernon	Brown, Howard		7,497	29.95
Tot. 25,029	Henry, Clinton		227	0.91
Rej. 82	Jell, Geoff		1,839	7.35
	Peach, Jane		334	1.33
	SANDERS, April	LIB	9,776	39.06
	Weiss, Heinz		5,356	21.40
Okanagan West	Charlish, Ken		8,281	24.46
Tot. 33,857	HAWKINS, Sindi		15,575	46.00
Rej. 168	Klein, Damon		519	1.53
	Lensen, George		399	1.18
	March, Angie		4,225	12.48
	Thompson, Keith	RP	4,858	14.35
Parksville-Qualicum	Brown, Cliff		110	0.34
Tot. 32,672	Krog, Leonard		12,976	39.72
Rej. 143	Martin, David		81	0.24
	REITSMA, Paul	l l	13,459	41.19
	Robinson, Mark		422	1.29
	Stone, Garner		1,669	5.11
	Westbroek, Teunis	RP	3,955	12.11
Peace River North	Bitterman, Neil		169	1.55
Tot. 10,945 Rej. 43	Bodnar, Dave		240	2.20
	Churchill, Brian		1,975	18.04
	Hoar, Brent	l l	125	1.14
	Knutson, BenNEUFELD, Richard		3,137 5,299	28.66 48.41
Peace River South	Allan, Wade Alexander	PDA	183	1.50
Tot. 12,233	Girard, Aime		452	3.69
Rej. 49	Haddow, Brian	l l	3,774	30.85
rej. 19	Hartnell, Shane		145	1.19
	Michiel, Patrick		3,778	30.88
	WEISGERBER, Jack		3,901	31.89
Port Coquitlam	Barr, Irene	LIB	13,310	41.80
Tot. 31,844	Eilers, Debra		417	1.31
Rej. 152	FARNWORTH, Mike		14,767	46.37
	Glazer, Lawrence		1,335	4.19
	Howard, Rick	l l	1,789	5.62
	Mortensen, Stan		124	0.39
	Wiebe, Michael		102	0.32

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Port Moody-Burnaby	Catt, Oz	GP	441	1.93
Mountain	CLARK, Christy		10,272	44.73
Tot. 22,964			1,408	6.13
	Connor, Margaret			4.52
Rej. 194	Friesen, Diane		1,039	1
	Ross, Jamie	NDP	9,804	42.69
Powell River-Sunshine	Atkinson, Don	RP	677	3.07
Coast	Forst, Bill	NDP	6,088	27.57
Tot. 22,084	Griston, Roslyn	CCF	57	0.26
Rej. 66	Reid, Cameron		3,911	17.71
).	WILSON, Gordon		10,833	49.05
	Young, D. Wendy	.	518	2.35
Drings Coores Mount	POONIE I aia	NDP	4 712	40.67
Prince George-Mount	BOONE, Lois	.	4,713	
Robson	Dittmar, Lorna		3,764	32.48
Tot. 11,588	Lorenz, Norm		2,076	17.92
Rej. 88	Self, Brian		788	6.80
	Zammuto, Richard Michael	GP	247	2.13
Prince George North	Benham, Ken	IND	495	3.36
Tot. 14,749	Graber, Adele	PDA	891	6.04
Rej. 117	Hirvi, Ron		2,430	16.48
):	Linden, Carolyn		173	1.16
	RAMSEY, Paul		5,837	39.58
	Viergever, Bob	.	4,923	33.38
Prince George-Omineca	Fraser, Carole	PDA	1,023	6.84
Tot. 14,950	Fraser, Chuck		5,206	34.82
Rej. 118	NETTLETON, Paul		5,514	36.88
Kej. 110	Ray, Ron		2,998	20.05
	Romaine, Todd Edward	.	2,998	1.41
	Romaine, lodd Edward	Gr	209	1.41
Richmond Centre	Akbar, Shamim	RP	614	3.43
Tot. 17,876	Biernat, Andrew		154	0.86
Rej. 144	Black, Doug	NDP	5,723	32.01
	Friedson, Manoa	GP	235	1.31
	Gaudet, Joseph	IND	65	0.37
	Mccooey, Mark	NLP	38	0.22
	Oey, Rob		996	5.57
	Pearson, Kerry	LBN	126	0.71
	SYMONS, Doug		9,925	55.52
Richmond East	Hudson, Kevan Eric	GP	235	1.28
Tot. 18,353	O'toole, Chris	.	139	0.76
· ·	Peterson, Paula	.	792	4.32
Rej. 140				55.60
	REID, Linda		10,205	1
	Sanghera, Balwant		5,763	31.40
	Schaper, Marc Gerrard		1,093	5.96
	Shelly, CarinaVeld, Donald		43	0.23
	I Mara I Mara a lal	CP	83	0.45

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
D' 1 1 C		DD.	FF	2.07
Richmond-Steveston	Abraham-Kirk, Shirley	I	556	3.27
Tot. 17,022	Cross, Gary		99	0.58
Rej. 85	Gold, Brian		188	1.10
	Neuls, Gordon		88	0.52
	Paquette, Gail		5,041	29.61
	PLANT, Geoff	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	9,643	56.65
	Stewart, Nancy		38	0.23
	Warnke, Allan	I	450	2.64
	Young, Pat	PDA	919	5.40
Rossland-Trail	CONROY, Ed	NDP	8,635	50.74
Tot. 17,018	Greene, Jim		5,923	34.80
Rej. 67	Greidanus, Clare	GP	434	2.55
,	Morris, Phillip	RP	1,366	8.03
	Plummer, Kathy	PDA	660	3.88
Saanich North and the	COELL, Murray Robert	LIB	13,374	47.57
Islands	Del Monte, Zino	I	63	0.23
Tot. 28,113	Du Temple, Wally		898	3.19
Rej. 120	Imrie, Ross		1,627	5.79
110). 120	Laushway, Lynda	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	10,546	37.51
	Lundy, Gary	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1,533	5.45
	Tessier, Paul		72	0.26
Saanich South	Anderson, Gail		86	0.35
Tot. 24,708	Braaten, Laery		38	0.33
			66	0.13
Rej. 141	Christie, Douglas Dealey, Cherie	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1,198	4.85
		I	343	1.39
	Etkin, Jack	I	676	2.74
	Knecht, Colin			43.98
	Leonard, Frank		10,867	1
	PETTER, AndrewWiebe, Ken		11,394 40	46.11 0.16
	ADDOTTE G		0.504	
Shuswap	ABBOTT, George	LIB	8,596	34.55
Tot. 24,879 Rej. 200	Campbell, Gordon		810	3.26
	De Felice, Paul Stephen		237	0.95
	Goss, Robert		221	0.89
	Mayes, Colin	RP	5,617	22.58
	Ritchie, Merv		204	0.81
	Torrens, Bev		1,325	5.33
	White, Calvin	NDP	7,869	31.63
Skeena	Bodnar, Doug	GP	205	1.54
Tot. 13,269	Burton, Andy		2,744	20.68
Rej. 93	GIESBRECHT, Helmut	NDP	5,353	40.34
	Serry, Dave		249	1.88
			1	1

	Party	Valid Votes	Popular Vote
Clark Chand	RP	2 (00	0.00
Clark, Stuart		2,690	9.08
			1.04
			29.82
			8.16
			48.27
	•		2.39 1.24
watters, David	Gr	300	1.24
	•	1,150	5.61
		179	0.87
Darmanin, Dominic		1,183	5.77
De La Pena, Romeo		228	1.11
		62	0.30
		10,278	50.11
		255	1.24
-		114	0.56
			0.49
		1	33.79
Ranger, Ross	NLP	32	0.15
Bajwa, Liaqat	RP	1,244	4.41
		217	0.77
Brown, Ian	PDA	1,841	6.53
Laporte, Shane	NLP	48	0.16
		340	1.21
		174	0.62
		13,969	49.54
		577	2.05
Thind, Indra	LIB	9,788	34.71
Conway, John	RP	1,302	8.83
		115	0.78
Haeusser, Jens M.	GP	243	1.65
Higginbotham, Judy	LIB	4,576	31.02
Hubert, Valerie	NLP	70	0.46
		968	6.56
Roberts, Donald A.	LBN	82	0.56
SMALLWOOD, Joan	NDP	7,396	50.14
Bajwa, Ahmad	PDA	1,110	3.57
		295	0.95
		677	2.18
			58.04
			0.73
Secord, David			8.10
			26.43
	Gall, Bill Gill, Charan McCormack, Philip McKINNON, Bonnie Stilwell, Heather Walters, David Baisch, Gerard Blair, Cliff Darmanin, Dominic De La Pena, Romeo Gidora, George HAMMELL, Sue Herwig, Gerhard Kedzierski, Victoria Knight, Don Phelps, Bill Ranger, Ross Bajwa, Liaqat Bannister, John Keith Brown, Ian Laporte, Shane Macdonald, Maureen Amy Maharaj, Neil PRIDDY, Penny Stilwell, Bill Thind, Indra Conway, John Fehr, Dora Haeusser, Jens M. Higginbotham, Judy Hubert, Valerie Marjanovic, Vlad Roberts, Donald A. SMALLWOOD, Joan Bajwa, Ahmad Burden, Kathy Chitty, Steve HURD, Wilf Post, Rick Secord, David	Gall, Bill SC Gill, Charan NDP McCormack, Philip PDA McKINNON, Bonnie LIB Stilwell, Heather FCP Walters, David GP Baisch, Gerard PDA Blair, Cliff CP Darmanin, Dominic RP Gidora, George COMM HAMMELL, Sue NDP Herwig, Gerhard FCP Kedzierski, Victoria SC Knight, Don IND Phelps, Bill LIB Ranger, Ross NLP Bajwa, Liaqat RP Bannister, John Keith CP Brown, Ian PDA Laporte, Shane NLP Macdonald, Maureen Amy GP Maharaj, Neil SC PRIDDY, Penny Stilwell, Bill FCP Thind, Indra RP Conway, John RP Fehr, Dora SC Haeusser, Jens M. GP Higginbotham, Judy LIB Hubert, Valerie NLP Marjanovic, Vlad Roberts, Donald A. SMALLWOOD, Joan NDP Bajwa, Ahmad PDA Burden, Kathy Chitty, Steve GP HURD, Wilf LIB Post, Rick SC	Gall, Bill SC 306 Gill, Charan NDP 8,831 McCormack, Philip PDA 2,417 McKINNON, Bonnie LIB 14,297 Stilwell, Heather FCP 709 Walters, David GP 366 Baisch, Gerard PDA 1,150 Blair, Cliff CP 179 Darmanin, Dominic RP 1,183 De La Pena, Romeo GP 228 Gidora, George COMM 62 HAMMELL, Sue NDP 10,278 Herwig, Gerhard FCP 255 Kedzierski, Victoria SC 114 Knight, Don IND 101 Phelps, Bill LIB 6,930 Ranger, Ross NLP 32 Bajwa, Liaqat RP 1,244 Bannister, John Keith CP 217 Brown, Jan PDA 1,841 Laporte, Shane NLP 48 Macdonald, Maureen Amy GP

Results by Electoral District — 36th General Election 1996 — Continued

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Vancouver-Burrard	Produce Alasta	RP	671	3.13
Tot. 21,420	Buday, Aletta		458	2.14
•	Clarke, John			4.73
Rej. 257	Mcdiarmid, Laura		1,014	0.44
	Melvin, Wayne A.			
	Popat, Imtiaz		563	2.63
	STEVENSON, Tim		10,646	49.70
	Wilson, Duncan	LIB	7,975	37.23
Vancouver-Fraserview	Cheema, Gulzar		8,394	43.98
Tot. 19,085	Lockhart, T. Glen		177	0.93
Rej. 143	Pabbies, Prince	NLP	57	0.30
	Samuel, Stephen	GP	225	1.18
	Shreeve, Tim	RP	643	3.37
	WADDELL, Ian	NDP	8,774	45.97
	Wong, Andy		815	4.27
Vancouver-Hastings	Cafariello, Joe	PDA	824	4.50
Tot. 18,318	Leung, Raymond		6,345	34.64
Rej. 209	MACPHAIL, Joy		9,894	54.01
rej. 20)	Matino, Nazario		568	3.10
	Prekratic, Christian		64	0.35
	Schmidt, Irene Louise		486	2.65
	Woolsey, Carrol		137	0.75
T/ T/ 1			0.406	F0.74
Vancouver-Kensington	DOSANJH, Ujjal		9,496	50.74
Tot. 18,716	Huey, Gim		7,608	40.65
Rej. 218	Pankey, Kirk		472	2.52
	Seykens, Don		537	2.87
	Toth, Mark		119	0.64
	White, Kelly		349	1.86
	Wong, Damon	SC	135	0.72
Vancouver-Kingsway	Beck, Steven Richard	NLP	65	0.34
Tot. 18,978	CLARK, Glen		10,525	55.46
Rej. 257	Eremko, Randy	LBN	98	0.52
•	Haje, Protais	IND	69	0.36
	Ho, Francis		6,997	36.87
	Hogan, Marilyn	GP	264	1.39
	Marks, Julia	PDA	518	2.73
	Norton, Graham	RP	367	1.93
	Saunders, Patrick S.		75	0.40
Vancouver-Langara	Airton, Michael	GP	337	1.84
Tot. 18,337	ANDERSON, Val J.		11,038	60.20
Rej. 177	Chang, Jerry Zen-Jih		89	0.48
1.c.j. 1//	Jung, Christie		519	2.83
	Rankin, Ragini		5,515	30.08
	Read, Philip		839	4.57
	r			

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Vancouver-Little Mountain	Birrell, Margaret	NDP	9,390	39.20
Tot. 23,954	Bradley, Ted Philip	PDA	1,062	4.43
Rej. 184	Brooke, Estelle	NLP	82	0.35
	FARRELL-COLLINS, Gary	LIB	12,036	50.25
	Grant, Dan	IND	96	0.40
	Kuklinski, Gerold	SC	85	0.35
	Parker, Stuart	GP	714	2.98
	Waine, David John	RP	489	2.04
Vancouver-Mount Pleasant	Alexander, Paul	GP	759	4.36
Tot. 17,416	Beer, Anne	LIB	4,243	24.36
Rej. 284	Cariou, Kimball	COMM	121	0.69
	Kent, John Stuart William	NLP	114	0.66
	Kokko, Agnes	SC	86	0.50
	KWAN, Jenny Wai Ching	NDP	11,155	64.05
	Marsden, Wayne	RP	354	2.03
	Spark, John	PDA	584	3.35
	opark, joint	1 15/1	304	0.00
Vancouver-Point Grey	CAMPBELL, Gordon	LIB	12,637	48.86
Tot. 25,865	Decter, Ron	NLP	76	0.29
Rej. 138	Green, Jim	NDP	11,074	42.81
,	Jan, Sager	RP	406	1.57
	Maud, Ralph	GP	683	2.64
	Moen, Michael J.P.	CP	70	0.27
	Mountstevens, Allison	PDA	857	3.31
	Rankin, E'an P.	FCP	62	0.25
	,			
Vancouver-Quilchena	Boshier, Roger	NDP	4,977	22.04
Tot. 22,583	Brooke, Alan Mackenzie	NLP	57	0.25
Rej. 109	Davison, Jay	RP	495	2.19
	HANSEN, Colin	LIB	15,509	68.68
	Hinton, Lorraine	SC	91	0.40
	Jerome, Valerie	GP	627	2.78
	Sanderson, Richard Chave	PDA	827	3.66
Victoria-Beacon Hill	BREWIN, Gretchen	NDP	11,960	52.51
Tot. 22,778	Conrad, Ken		654	2.87
Rej. 194	Danyluk, Cal		64	0.28
11cj. 171	Demeulenaere, Stephen		1,008	4.43
	Douglas, Johnny	CCF	43	0.19
	Fahl, Richard		1,093	4.80
	Kolbinson, Jill		92	0.40
	Markson, Howard		7,636	33.52
			7,030	0.32
	Maxwell, Sequoia Nathan		96	0.32
	Van Dyk, Lance	WCC	59	0.42
	Ward, Bob	1 4400	39	0.26

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
T7' TT'II . I	n C	DD 4	1 007	F (F
Victoria-Hillside	Beyer, Gary		1,227	5.65
Tot. 21,728	Guest, Andy		97	0.44
Rej. 139	ORCHERTON, Steve		11,585	53.32
	Orr, Sheila		6,862	31.58
	Peter, Erich		102	0.47
	Randall, C. David		86	0.39
	White, David Scott		790	3.64
	Willson, Dan	RP	979	4.51
West Vancouver-Capilano	DALTON, Jeremy	LIB	16,675	71.29
Tot. 23,391	Ferguson, Matthew		461	1.97
Rej. 196	Grayson, Carolyn		47	0.20
	Jurlina, Marina		1,182	5.05
	Kelly, Jim		174	0.74
	Pokrandt, Kurt		40	0.18
	Reeve, Daniel		3,486	14.90
	Shandro, Ted		1,326	5.67
West Vancouver-Garibaldi			91	0.42
	Audain, Tunya		98	0.42
Tot. 21,562	Becker, Mike			29.16
Rej. 102	Broughton, Brenda		6,288 68	0.32
	Down, Muriel D.E.		693	3.21
	French, Roland T.			
	Grayson, David		36	0.17
	Mercier, Jim		1,430	6.63
	NEBBELING, Ted		12,326	57.17
	Stortz, Peggy	GP	532	2.47
Yale-Lillooet	Bennett, Richard	PDA	706	4.09
Tot. 17,241	LALI, Harry	NDP	7,080	41.06
Rej. 76	Rabbitt, Jim		5,912	34.29
•	Stinson, John Calvin	RP	3,419	19.83
	Vanwoudenberg, Ed		124	0.73

By-Elections 36th Parliament

SURREY-WHITE ROCK

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat
18 August 1997	2 September 1997	15 September 1997	29 September 1997	26 March 1998
]	ELECTION RESULTS	3	
		Party	Votes	% of Votes
Gardner, Bill		PDA	876	4.27
Hessels, Jim		FCP	198	0.98
HOGG, Gordon		LIB	10,497	51.73
Parker, Stuart		GP	910	4.49
Secord, David		RP	5,298	26.11
Thompson, David		NDP	2,520	12.42
TOTAL VALID VO			20,290 32	

REASON: Resignation of MLA Wilf Hurd, 2 May 1997 DISTRICT ELECTORAL OFFICER¹: Lorraine Livesey

¹ New terminology was introduced in the 1996 General Election with revisions to the *Election Act*. District Electoral Officers (formerly Returning Officers) were appointed by the Chief Electoral Officer under Section 18 of the *Election Act* to conduct the election in their electoral district. District Registrars were also appointed by the Chief Electoral Officer under Section 22 of the *Election Act* with responsibility for voter registration in the electoral district.

PARKSVILLE-QUALICUM

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat
16 November 1998	1 December 1998	14 December 1998	24 December 1998	13 January 1999
	I	ELECTION RESULTS	6	
		Party	Votes	% of Votes
Blank, Les		IND	136	0.52
Brunie, Brunie		IND	439	1.66
		PDA	3,585	13.60
Krog, Leonard		NDP	5,978	22.69
Moreau, Mary Elinoi	•	FCP	94	0.36
Motiuk, John Walate	r	ВСР	74	0.28
Parker, Stuart		GP	458	1.74
REID, Judith		LIB	13,862	52.61
Rocan, Roger		RP	1,560	5.92
Ryder, Brucelinton Jo	oseph	IND	163	0.62
TOTAL VALID VO	ΓES		26,349	
REJECTED			55	

REASON: Resignation of MLA Paul Reitsma, 23 June 1998

DISTRICT ELECTORAL OFFICER: Jeanne Blue

DELTA SOUTH

Issue of Writ	Nomination Day	Polling Day	Return Day of Writ	Date Member Took Seat
9 November 1999	24 November 1999	7 December 1999	21 December 1999	15 March 2000
	j		3	
		Party	Votes	% of Votes
Hessels, Jim		FCP	112	0.64
Hodgins, Greg		SC	137	0.77
La Belle, Robert Johr	ι	GP	488	2.75
RODDICK, Val		LIB	10,577	59.63
Tones, Richard		NDP	433	2.44
Vander Zalm, Bill		RP	5,837	32.91
Warnke, Allan		IND	153	0.86
TOTAL VALID VO	TES		17,737	
REJECTED			41	

REASON: Death of MLA Fred Gingell, 6 July 1999

DISTRICT ELECTORAL OFFICER: Janice Cook

37th General Election 2001

Dissolution of legislature	18 April 2001
Issue of writs	18 April 2001
Nomination day	3 May 2001
Polling day	16 May 2001
Return day of writs	7 June 2001
Opening of new legislature	19 June 2001

SUMMARY

	Votes	%	Members	Candidates
B.C. Liberal Party	916,888	57.62	77	79
British Columbia Marijuana Party	51,206	3.22	_	<i>7</i> 9
Green Party Political Association of British Columbia	197,231	12.39		72
New Democratic Party of British Columbia	343,156	21.56	2	79
Unity Party of British Columbia	51,426	3.23	_	56
Other Affiliations ¹	31,399	1.98	_	91
TOTALS	<u>1,591,306</u>	100.00	<u>79</u>	<u>456</u>

All Nations Party of British Columbia (ANP)
 B.C. Action Party (BCAP)
 British Columbia Citizens Alliance Now (BCCA)
 British Columbia Conservative Party (CP)
 British Columbia Patriot Party (BCPA)
 British Columbia Social Credit Party (SC)
 The Central Party (CENT)
 Citizens Commonwealth Federation (CFED)
 Communist Party of British Columbia (COMM)
 Council of British Columbians (COBC)
 The Freedom Party of British Columbia (FREE)
 Party of Citizens Who Have Decided To Think For Themselves And Be Their Own Politicians (POC)
 People's Front (PF)
 Reform Party of British Columbia (RP)
 Western Reform (WR)

Independent (IND) No Affiliation (NA)

Results by Electoral District — 37th General Election 2001

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Abbotsford-Clayburn	Fulford, Jon	BCM	706	4.07
Tot. 17,354	Keillor, Kenneth Montgomery		217	1.25
Rej. 154	Lind, Kris		2,096	12.08
,-	Stiegelmar, Peter	l l	1,751	10.09
	VAN DONGEN, John		12,584	72.51
Abbotsford-Mount	Carlisle, Brian	BCM	451	2.44
Lehman	Cavacece (Ewert), Gloria		1,576	8.53
Tot. 18,486	DEJONG, Michael		12,660	68.48
Rej. 116	Hann, Karl	l l	1,299	7.03
110j. 110	McCulloch, Robert Wayne		23	0.12
			46	0.12
	MacKay, David Purewal, Taranjit		2,431	13.15
Alberni-Qualicum	Janssen, Gerard A. M.	NDP	7,395	30.08
Tot. 24,584	1 ·		2,999	12.20
	Paone, Sergio		1	
Rej. 93	Thorp, Nicholas Saint Edmund		1,081	4.40
	TRUMPER, Gillian	LIB	13,109	53.32
Bulkley Valley-Stikine	Forsyth, Bill	BCCA	62	0.47
Tot. 13,257	Goodacre, Bill	NDP	2,823	21.29
Rej. 44	Hussinger, Rolf		856	6.46
110). 11	MACKAY, Dennis		7,414	55.93
	McKilligan, Trevor	l l	507	3.82
			405	3.05
	Tait, Theresa			
	Taylor, Rod	UPBC	1,190	8.98
Burnaby-Edmonds	Arjun, Roy	BCM	456	2.43
Tot. 18,802	Dhaliwal, Sav	NDP	4,924	26.19
Rej. 120	Hawthorne, Eric		2,599	13.82
	Murray, Grant		1,111	5.91
	SAHOTA, Patty		9,607	51.09
	Watson, Gordon S.		105	0.56
Burnaby North	Calendino, Pietro	NDP	5,992	29.45
Tot. 20,344	Hetherington, Tom		2,824	13.88
	LEE, Richard T.	l l	11,062	54.37
Rej. 102	Ware, Dale		466	2.30
Rumahy Willingdon			2 970	15 74
Burnaby-Willingdon	Keithley, Joe		2,879	15.74
Tot. 18,296	Macauley, Dennis	l l	240	1.30
Rej. 158	Myles, Dave	l l	4,608	25.19
	NURANEY, John		10,207	55.79
	Zak, Pamela	BCM	362	1.98
Burquitlam	BLOY, Harry	LIB	11,131	56.34
Tot. 19,756	Grin, Peter	BCM	530	2.69
Rej. 190	Healey, Bart		4,678	23.68
,	Mancinelli, Stephen J.		2,668	13.50
	Watrich, Greg		749	3.79

Results by Electoral District — 37th General Election 2001 — Continued

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Cariboo North	Charlebois, Al "Ace"	PF	24	0.15
Tot. 15,460	Garden, Frank		2,732	17.67
Rej. 76	Gook, Douglas Norman		712	4.61
rej. 70	Goulet, Tony		292	1.89
	McBeth, Steven A.	UPBC	420	2.72
	McIvor, Kim		727	4.70
	Payne, Stephen		509	3.29
	WILSON, John David		10,044	64.97
Cariboo South	Broomfield, Bruce	PF	83	0.50
Tot. 16,490	Case, Dan	ANP	552	3.35
Rej. 66	COBB, Walt	LIB	10,259	62.21
	Matte, Christopher	UPBC	598	3.63
	Orr, Mike	BCM	739	4.48
	Zirnhelt, David	NDP	4,259	25.83
Chilliwack-Kent	Commodore, Larry	GP	1,511	8.19
Tot. 18,448	Ferguson, David		968	5.25
Rej. 94	James, Malcolm		2,155	11.68
	PENNER, Barry	LIB	13,814	74.88
Chilliwack-Sumas	Cepuran, Grant		1,199	6.34
Tot. 18,900	LES, John		14,137	74.80
Rej. 168	Muise, Christine		2,434	12.88
	Siefken, Norm	BCM	1,130	5.98
Columbia River-	Brownlee, Jennifer R.		978	6.76
Revelstoke	Doyle, Jim		4,551	31.46
Tot. 14,465	Kirkman, Lisa A.		642	4.44
Rej. 46	Lehn, Miles		490	3.39
	McMAHON, Wendy	LIB	7,804	53.95
Comox Valley	Beaudoin, Sylvain Luc		873	3.16
Tot. 27,645	Gillespie, Evelyn		5,356	19.37
Rej. 57	HAGEN, Stan		15,569	56.32
	Munroe, PamRobinson, John William		5,170 677	18.70 2.45
Coquitlam-Maillardville	Bonner, Tim		862	4.25
Tot. 20,273	Geddes, Paul		584	2.88
Rej. 75	Landgraff, Ken		4,442	21.90
1.6). 7.5	Petersen, Elly		2,522	12.44
	Stead, Doug		144	0.72
	STEWART, Richard	LIB	11,549	56.97
	Warren, Harry		170	0.84
Cowichan-Ladysmith	BRUCE, Graham P.	LIB	12,707	52.21
Tot. 24,337	Duncan, Loren		3,250	13.35
Rej. 99	Hutchins, Rob	NDP	7,783	31.98
	Kunz, Larry	BCM	597	2.46

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Delta North	Cilfillan Jain	BCM	543	2.76
Tot. 19,687	Gilfillan, Iain Hague, John		2,504	12.72
-	Lortie, Norm		3,734	18.97
Rej. 84	MASI, Reni		11,919	60.54
	Todorovic, Dario		987	5.01
Delta South	Adams, Ruth Mary	NDP	2,053	9.42
				0.49
Tot. 21,785	Dhillon, Paul		105	
Rej. 64	Goodrich, Justin P.		760	3.49
	Hansen, Mike		507	2.33
	La Belle, Rob		3,650	16.75
	Mann, George		114	0.52
	RODDICK, Val	LIB	14,596	67.00
East Kootenay	BENNETT, Bill	LIB	10,206	61.85
Tot.16,500	Krats, Joni	GP	1,287	7.80
Rej. 59	Parke, Bruce		651	3.95
,	Sima, Fred		718	4.35
	Walsh, Erda	NDP	3,638	22.05
Esquimalt-Metchosin	Attrill, Scott	IND	68	0.33
Tot. 20,841	Berglund, Rick	IND	105	0.50
Rej. 86	Clarke, Bill		322	1.55
,	Davies, Christopher John		534	2.56
	HAMILTON, Arnie		9,544	45.79
	Karagianis, Maurine		6,258	30.03
	McVeigh, Gerry		57	0.27
	Sundeen, Marilyn		3,685	17.68
	Ward, Bob		268	1.29
Fort Langley-Aldergrove	Challenger, Simon	NDP	2,619	10.82
Tot. 24,197	COLEMAN, Rich		16,527	68.30
Rej. 111	Dunbar, Murray		336	1.39
11cj. 111	Jopling, Deanna		1,275	5.27
	Mckenzie, Joshua		674	2.79
	Welling, Andrea		2,766	11.43
Kamloops	Gushulak, Julian	BCM	707	3.47
Tot. 20,360	McGregor, Cathy	DCM NDP	4,592	22.55
	RICHMOND, Claude			60.21
Rej. 174	Schmidt, Ernie		12,258	0.95
			193	1
	Teichman, Joe		2,180 430	10.71 2.11
Kamloone North			026	201
Kamloops-North	Altenhofen, R.H. (Bob)		836	3.84
Thompson	Falk, Vern		1,025	4.69
Tot. 21,840	Hartle, Dwayne		4,181	19.14
Rej. 172	KRUEGER, Kevin		12,676	58.04
	Walsh, Denis J.	GP	3,122	14.29

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Kalayyna Laka Cauntuy	Halanan Paul	ВСМ	734	3.29
Kelowna-Lake Country Tot. 22,303	Halonen, Paul Rice, Devra Lynn		2,606	11.68
Rej. 104	Scotland, Janet Elizabeth		3,102	13.91
Rej. 104	Thomson, David	I	272	1.22
	WEISBECK, John Alan		14,093	63.19
	Wendland, Kevin		1,496	6.71
Kelowna-Mission	Baudais, Grant	BCAP	296	1.25
Tot. 23,762	HAWKINS, Sindi	LIB	15,351	64.60
Rej. 102	Nichol, Kelly	BCM	787	3.31
,	Reid, Angela	GP	2,588	10.89
	Rosal, Assunta		3,066	12.90
	Vogan, Paul.	UPBC	1,674	7.05
Langley	Becker, Mavis	I	723	3.21
Tot. 22,459	Latham, Paul	NDP	2,720	12.11
Rej. 66	Nelson, Gordon		1,605	7.15
	STEPHENS, Lynn		14,564	64.85
	Taylor, Pat	GP	2,847	12.68
Malahat-Juan de Fuca	Anderton, Ron		547	2.39
Tot. 22,894	Bradley, Stephen		3,275	14.31
Rej. 93	Hughes, Richard		3,687	16.10
	Kasper, Rick		5,164	22.56
	KERR, Brian J.		9,676	42.26
	Mander, Julie L. M.	I	323	1.41
	Power, Susan	CP	222	0.97
Maple Ridge-Mission	Bennett, Rose		4,710	20.66
Tot. 22,800	Briere-Smart, Denise		908	3.98
Rej. 127	HAWES, Randy		12,920	56.67
	Paley, Dawn		2,910	12.76
	Randall, Dale	I	252	1.11
	Richardson, ChumRitchie, David		63 1,037	0.27 4.55
1. 1. D. 1. D				
Maple Ridge-Pitt	Cameron, Rick		716	3.10
Meadows	Felgner, Michael	BCAP	97	0.42
Tot. 23,101	Gildersleeve, Mike		3,069	13.29
Rej. 77	Hartley, Bill		5,764	24.95
	Hensman, Dave		1,220	5.28
	STEWART, Ken	LIB	12,235	52.96
Nanaimo	Brunie, Brunie	IND	199	0.92
Tot. 21,836	Catley, Doug		3,810	17.45
Rej. 110	HUNTER, Mike	LIB	9,748	44.64
	Krog, Leonard	NDP	6,602	30.23
	Lavallée, Donald Edgar		889	4.07
	Miller, Steve	UPBC	588	2.69

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Nanaimo-Parksville	Brennan, Jamie	NDP	5,852	21.11
Tot 21,836	Carson, Phil	GP	3,192	11.51
Rej. 105	Melman, Leonard Martin	BCM	634	2.28
	REID, Judith	LIB	17,356	62.60
	Stelmacker, Daniel	UPBC	693	2.50
Nelson-Creston	Cox, Stephen	UPBC	1,108	5.05
Tot. 21,940	Evans, Ĉorky	NDP	6,981	31.82
Rej. 79	Loehndorf, Dan		570	2.60
,	Mccrory, Colleen	GP	4,723	21.53
	SUFFREDINE, Blair F	LIB	8,558	39.00
New Westminster	Bowbrick, Graeme	NDP	6,971	31.02
Tot. 22,475	Broughton, Robert		2,982	13.27
Rej. 113	Campbell, Marlene P.	BCM	859	3.82
11cj. 11o	Irving, Howard Vernon	UPBC	604	2.69
	MURRAY, Joyce	LIB	11,059	49.20
	Werder, joyce	Lib	11,000	47.20
North Coast	BELSEY, Bill	LIB	4,915	45.25
Tot. 10,860	Bolton, Emsily Victor		526	4.84
Rej. 46	Fitzpatrick, Colleen		4,084	37.61
,	Hall, Clarence		152	1.40
	Konsmo, David	•	560	5.16
	Peerless, Kenneth Leonard	BCM	623	5.74
North Island	Evers, Noreen	BCM	1,099	4.56
Tot. 24,126	Keller, Ralph		2,871	11.90
-		NDP	1	26.42
Rej. 104	Robertson, Glenn		6,375	
	SANDERSON VISSER, Rod	LIB	13,781	57.12
North Vancouver-Lonsdale	Cote, Jonathan Xerxes	NA	173	0.91
Tot. 18,986	Kishi, Roger	NDP	3,016	15.89
Rej. 167	Long, Terry W.	GP	3,823	20.14
	Neal, Darin Keith	BCM	612	3.22
	WHITTRED, Katherine	LIB	11,362	59.84
North Vancouver-Seymour	Dreyer, Tom	BCM	568	2.38
Tot. 23,906	Gamble, Ron		683	2.86
Rej. 94	JARVIS, Daniel		15,568	65.12
1cj. 74	Kirkaldy, Evelyn		4,127	17.26
	McKenzie, Chris		209	0.87
	Paterson, Sheila	NDP	2,751	11.51
Oals Barrie C. 1. III. 1	Proveferal Ch. 1	NIDD	F F 00	00.74
Oak Bay-Gordon Head	Beresford, Charley	•	5,789	22.74
Tot. 25,454	CHONG, Ida	•	14,588	57.31
Rej. 93	Geall, Christin		4,666	18.33
	Mann, Michael "Mik"	BCM	411	1.62

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Okanagan-Vernon	CHRISTENSEN, Tom	LIB	13,868	56.51
Tot. 25,542	Daniels, Kathleen (N.O.)		157	0.64
Rej. 68	Hokhold, Andrew N.	I	82	0.33
reg. 60	Jones, Michael		917	3.74
	Macdonald, Doug	UPBC	3,213	13.09
	Nelson, Erin	GP	2,214	9.02
	Sebastian, Troy		3,529	14.38
	Wong, Herb		562	2.29
Okanagan-Westside	Hunt, Howard Lionel	UPBC	1,364	6.55
Tot. 20,830	Peach, Jack W.	BCAP	921	4.42
Rej. 127	Taylor, Teresa		1,188	5.70
•	THORPE, Rick	LIB	14,181	68.08
	Ursuliak, Ernie Dmetro		3,176	15.25
Peace River North	Churchill, Brian	NDP	1,047	11.56
Tot. 9,054	NEUFELD, Richard		6,629	73.22
Rej. 55	Renaud, Paul		810	8.95
	Stange, Roy Daniel	UPBC	568	6.27
Peace River South	Golhof, Garret		225	2.25
Tot. 9,962	Kabush, Elmer		767	7.69
Rej. 34	Lajeunesse, Stacey Dean		407	4.08
	LEKSTROM, Blair		6,393	64.20
	Mitton, Grant		1,726	17.33
	Rainey-Fenkarek, Michelle	BCM	444	4.45
Penticton-Okanagan	BARISOFF, Bill		15,609	62.73
Valley	Gidda, Kal		522	2.10
Tot. 24,881	Goldstone, Riley		786	3.16
Rej. 73	Naegel, Harry		3,524	14.16
	Ozero, Walter	UPBC	553	2.23
	Terada, Naga	NDP	3,887	15.62
Port Coquitlam-Burke	Braconnier, Craig		151	0.68
Mountain	Delaney, Chris		2,297	10.42
Tot. 22,046	Fanstone, Clay		150	0.68
Rej. 54	Farnworth, Mike		7,198	32.65
	Gallagher, Kelli	GP	1,841	8.36
	Hewer, Doug	BCM	446	2.02
	MANHAS, Karn	LIB	9,963	45.19
Port Moody-Westwood	CLARK, Christy		16,500	74.64
Tot. 22,106	Revel, Brian		4,178	18.90
Rej. 193	Smecher, Graeme	BCM	1,428	6.46
Powell River-Sunshine	Carr, Adriane Janice		6,316	27.01
Coast	Larsen, Dana Albert		812	3.48
Tot. 23,381	LONG, Harold	I	9,904	42.36
Rej. 99	Wilson, Gordon	NDP	6,349	27.15

Results by Electoral District — 37th General Election 2001 — Continued

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Prince George-Mount	Arris, Lelani Lynn	GP	1,429	9.91
Robson	BOND, Shirley	LIB	8,033	55.72
Tot. 14,416	Dewolf, Andrej Joeseph	BCM	744	5.16
Rej. 128	Martz, Erle	RP	445	3.09
,	Whitcombe, Todd	NDP	2,655	18.42
	Zayonc, Bob	UPBC	1,110	7.70
Prince George North	BELL, Pat	LIB	9,215	61.02
Tot. 15,101	Crowley, Hilary	GP	1,137	7.53
Rej. 68	Grimsrud, Robert	BCM	588	3.89
	Jensen, Leif	IND	76	0.51
	Llewellyn, Bryan	NDP	2,148	14.22
	Low, David G.	UPBC	838	5.55
	Maskell, Lisa	WR	621	4.11
	McLeod, Fred	IND	478	3.17
Prince George-Omineca	DeWolf, Will	BCM	646	3.81
Tot. 16,982	John, Ed	NDP	3,156	18.58
Rej. 84	Matte, Eldon	UPBC	1,685	9.92
	NETTLETON, Paul R.	LIB	10,469	61.65
	Usher, David	GP	1,026	6.04
Richmond Centre	Grant, Jaana	NDP	2,206	13.14
Tot. 16,785	HALSEY-BRANDT, Greg	LIB	12,061	71.86
Rej. 140	Hessels, Jim	UPBC	381	2.27
	Kan-Halford, Alice	BCM	357	2.13
	Marshall, Bruce	GP	1,615	9.62
	Tofin, Frank Peter	CP	165	0.98
Richmond East	Farah, Mohamud Ali	IND	173	0.96
Tot. 18,067	Kronstein, Stephen	GP	1,802	9.97
Rej. 78	Nasgowitz, Willy	NDP	2,550	14.11
	Pal, Joe	UPBC	599	3.32
	REID, Linda	LIB	12,498	69.18
	Shavluk, John	BCM	445	2.46
Richmond-Steveston	Chilton, Barry Edward	CP	160	0.76
Tot. 20,955	Hudson, Kevan	GP	2,257	10.77
Rej. 125	Mathias, Gordon	BCM	561	2.68
	Mortimer, Billie	NDP	2,564	12.24
	Paul, Vincent	UPBC	381	1.82
	Petersen, Edith	PF	21	0.10
	PLANT, Geoff	LIB	14,508	69.23
	Wade, Sue	RP	145	0.69
	Warnke, Allan	IND	358	1.71
Saanich North and the	COELL, Murray Robert	LIB	15,406	54.29
Islands	Jensen, Balther Johannes	IND	257	0.91
Tot. 28,376	Lewis, Andrew	GP	7,211	25.41
Rej. 86	Racki, Christina	BCM	491	1.73
	Sam, Paul	NDP	5,011	17.66

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Saanich South	BRICE, Susan	LIB	12,699	52.17
Tot. 24,343	Cubberley, David		6,838	28.09
Rej. 66	Lauder, James Robert		172	0.71
Rej. 00	MacDonald, Gracie		3,823	15.70
	Scrimger, Paul		349	1.43
	Tulloch, Tamara		462	1.43
Shuswap	ABBOTT, George Malcolm	LIB	12,950	56.27
Tot. 23,013	Fowler, Wayne		3,788	16.46
Rej. 65	Lutjen, Larissa		2,423	10.53
11cj. 00	McLennan, Jeanette (N.O.)		119	0.52
	Roberts, Paddy		835	3.63
	Thiessen, Al	I	2,857	12.41
	Yee, Scott		41	0.18
Cleans	Amas Canald Vistor	ANID	470	2.61
Skeena Tel 12 201	Amos, Gerald Victor		479	3.61
Tot. 13,281	Benham, Roger Colin		695	5.23
Rej. 68	Erb, Bob		810	6.10
	Giesbrecht, Helmut		2,644	19.91
	HARRIS, Roger Brendan	LIB	8,653	65.15
Surrey-Cloverdale	Chitty, Steve		2,227	10.33
Tot. 21,561	Elliott, Jason		481	2.23
Rej. 82	FALCON, Kevin	I	13,739	63.72
	Hoytema, George		1,112	5.16
	McKinnon, Bonnie	I	1,669	7.74
	Oakley, Steve	NDP	2,333	10.82
Surrey-Green Timbers	Daudharia, Harjit		103	0.67
Tot. 15,400	Hammell, Sue		5,592	36.31
Rej. 151	Kalsi, Dennis	BCM	561	3.65
	LOCKE, Brenda		7,539	48.95
	Paterson, Jim	I	538	3.49
	Robinson, C. Lewis	UPBC	1,067	6.93
Surrey-Newton	BHULLAR, Tony		6,750	49.45
Tot. 13,649	Bridgman, Margaret		431	3.16
Rej. 92	Grewal, Param	NDP	3,949	28.93
	Joshi, Paul	UPBC	498	3.65
	Kawamoto, Stephen	BCM	348	2.55
	Walters, David	GP	1,673	12.26
Surrey-Panorama Ridge	Abraham, Shirley	RP	408	2.51
Tot. 16,272	Athwal, Sunny		1,437	8.83
Rej. 128	Caine, Randy		424	2.61
•	CHEEMA, Gulzar		9,590	58.94
	Ralston, Bruce		3,240	19.91
	Stilwell, Heather		1,123	6.90
	Weiland, Ed		50	0.30

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Surrey-Tynehead	Bell, Barry	NDP	3,159	15.72
Tot. 20,101	Benipal, Mandir	IND	50	0.25
Rej. 95	Briere, Don	BCM	385	1.92
rej. 70	Collins, Marilyn	IND	880	4.38
	Ephraimson, Enoch	RP	265	1.31
		LIB	12,252	60.95
	HAYER, Dave	GP		9.33
	Macht, Joel Stilwell, Bill	UPBC	1,876	6.14
			1,234	
Surrey-Whalley	Arnaout, Khalid Damien	BCM	544	3.72
Tot. 14,637	BRENZINGER, Elayne	LIB	6,693	45.73
Rej. 85	Conway, John A.	UPBC	838	5.73
	McComas, Terry	GP	1,652	11.28
	Runté, Mike	RP	374	2.55
	Smallwood, Joan	NDP	4,536	30.99
Surrey-White Rock	Bourgeois, David	BCM	536	1.96
Tot. 27,189	Christine, Ruth	GP	3,577	13.16
Rej. 91	HOGG, Gordon J.	LIB	18,678	68.70
	Sahl, Garry	UPBC	983	3.62
	Todd, Matt	NDP	3,415	12.56
Vancouver-Burrard	Bear, Boris	IND	136	0.57
Tot. 23,688	Emery, Marc	BCM	906	3.82
	Helvis	NA	25	0.11
Rej. 123		GP		16.15
	Mattu, Robbie		3,826	
	MAYENCOURT, Lorne	LIB	11,396	48.11
	Stevenson, Tim	NDP PF	7,359 40	31.07 0.17
	Theriault, Joseph			
Vancouver-Fairview	FARRELL-COLLINS, Gary	LIB	12,864	54.94
Tot. 23,414	MacIntyre, Ron	BCM	651	2.78
Rej. 142	Romaniuk, Anita	NDP	4,772	20.38
•	Sproule, Brian	PF	76	0.33
	Violini, Vanessa	GP	5,051	21.57
Vancouver-Fraserview	Hughes, Paul Emerson	BCM	267	1.46
Tot. 18,229	JOHNSTON, Ken	LIB	10,361	56.84
Rej. 150	Matthew, Merina	GP	1,417	7.77
	Stilwell, Paul	UPBC	369	2.02
	Waddell, Ian	NDP	5,815	31.91
Vancouson Hactings	Roylan Charles	PF	119	0.63
Vancouver-Hastings	Boylan, Charles	GP	2,874	14.94
Tot. 19,233	Gregson, Ian			
Rej. 134	Lee, Daniel	LIB	7,600	39.51
	MacPHAIL, Joy	NDP	8,009	41.64
	Ouimet, Davin	BCM SC	409 222	2.13 1.15
**	, and the second			
Vancouver-Kensington	Dosanjh, Ujjal	NDP	7,478	38.82
Tot. 19,265	Gordon, John	BCM	516	2.68
Rej. 250	Krawczyk, Betty	GP	1,795	9.32
	O'Flynn, John Francis	UPBC	314	1.62
	WONG, Patrick	LIB	9,162	47.56

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
Vancouver-Kingsway	Barsallo, Alicia	NDP	5,429	32.78
Tot. 16,563	Ducharme, Tyler		159	0.96
Rej. 188	Lay, Steven Mackenzie		364	2.20
16). 160	Lyon, Geoff		1,725	10.41
	NIJJAR, Rob		8,264	49.89
	** '		81	0.49
	Petersen, Donna Vetro, Sal		541	3.27
Vancouver-Langara	ANDERSON, Val	LIB	11,800	66.90
Tot. 17,637	Campbell, Anthony		673	3.82
Rej. 203	Hill, Michael		51	0.29
1.cj. 200	Prontzos, Peter G.		2,999	17.00
	Warkentin, Doug		2,009	11.39
	Young, Joe		105	0.60
Vancouver-Mount Pleasan			142	0.88
Tot. 16,105	Hofmann, Dale		2,612	16.22
Rej. 208	KWAN, Jenny Wai Ching		7,163	44.48
rej. 200	Liar, Liar		148	0.92
	Malmo-Levine, David	•	489	3.03
	Poley, Franklin Wayne		42	0.26
			5,343	33.18
	Sparrow, Gail Yvonne Wright, Ken	•	166	1.03
Vancouver-Point Grey	CAMPBELL, Gordon	LIB	13,430	56.14
Tot. 23,924	Curylo, Alex	BCM	659	2.75
Rej. 128	Dahms, Greg		257	1.07
,	Jamieson, Anne		43	0.18
	Johal, Am		4,441	18.57
	Rubin, Varya		5,094	21.29
Vancouver-Quilchena	Chowne, Katrina		351	1.54
Tot. 22,785	HANSEN, Colin Gordon	LIB	16,829	73.86
Rej. 96	Johnstone, Judy		3,277	14.38
,	Richmond, Gareth Charles		2,168	9.52
	Sharp, Mike		160	0.70
Victoria-Beacon Hill	Botterell, Rob	IND	205	0.82
Tot. 25,103	BRAY, Jeff	LIB	9,297	37.04
Rej. 135	Goodacre, Kirsten		64	0.25
,	Hartnell, Gregory Paul Michael		290	1.15
	James, Carole		9,262	36.90
	Meyer Zu Erpen, Walter	•	5,453	21.72
	Tompkins, Troy		532	2.12
Victoria-Hillside	Beyer, Chuck	BCM	663	3.17
Tot. 20,893	Braaten, Laery		49	0.24
Rej. 140	Gidora, George		72	0.35
	Hertzog, Stuart		4,142	19.82
	1 200/ 000000		1	l l
	Orcherton, Steve	NDP	7.796	37 31
	Orcherton, SteveORR, Sheila	NDP LIB	7,796 7,878	37.31 37.71

Electoral District	Name	Party	Total Valid Votes	% of Popular Vote
West Kootenay-Boundary	Conroy, Ed	NDP	6,915	31.89
Tot. 21,682	McLaren, Mark	UPBC	1,139	5.25
Rej. 71	Pépé, Patricia	GP	2,004	9.24
110, 71	SANTORI, Sandy	LIB	10.784	49.74
	Taylor, Brian	BCM	840	3.88
West Vancouver-Capilano	Dalton, Jeremy	IND	1,355	6.33
Tot. 21,401	Gambioli, Nora	GP	2,932	13.70
Rej. 92	Lovick, Matt	NDP	1,284	6.00
,	SULTAN, Ralph	LIB	15,556	72.69
	Vichert, Keir	ВСМ	274	1.28
West Vancouver-Garibaldi	Adam, Robert	ВСМ	767	3.60
Tot. 21,330	MacLeod, Barrie	NDP	2,330	10.92
Rej. 92	NEBBELING, Ted	LIB	14,542	68.18
,	Tatroff, Peter Michael	GP	3,691	17.30
Yale-Lillooet	CHUTTER, Dave	LIB	9,845	60.07
Tot. 16,388	Kanemitsu, Harue	GP	1,657	10.11
Rej. 84	Moses, Don	ANP	1,126	6.87
,	O'Donnell, Dorothy-Jean	PF	136	0.84
	Royer, Vincent	BCM	807	4.92
	York, Victor	NDP	2,817	17.19

Party Abbreviations 1987 - 2001

Party	Abbreviations
All Nations Party of British Columbia	ANP
B.C. Action Party	BCAP
B.C. Party	
British Columbia Citizens Alliance Now	BCAA
British Columbia Marijuana Party	BCM
British Columbia Patriot Party	BCPA
Central Party	CENT
Citizens Commonwealth Federation	CFED
Common Sense, Community, Family Party	CCF1
Communist League	CL
Communist Party of British Columbia	
Council of British Columbians	COBC
Family Coalition Party	FCP
Freedom Party of British Columbia	
Gnu Democratic Rhino Reform	
Green Party of British Columbia	GP
Green-Go (Green Wing/Rhino)	
Hospice Movement	
Human Race Party	
Independent	
Interdependence Party	
Liberal Party	
Libertarian	
Natural Law Party	
New Democratic Party	
New Populist Party	
Party of Citizens Who Have Decided To Think For Themselves and Be Their Own	
Politicians	POC
People's Front	PF
Progressive Conservative Party	CP
Progressive Democratic Alliance	PDA
qt	
Reform Party	RP
Social Credit Party of British Columbia	
Unity Party of British Columbia	UPBC
Western Canada Concept	WCC
Western Reform	

¹ CCF was used in the *Electoral History of British Columbia*, 1871-1986 for the Co-operative Commonwealth Federation. In 1960 the CCF changed its name nationally to New Party and in 1961 the name was changed to New Democratic Party (NDP).

Parties and Elections 1987 - 2001

Party	Election
All Nations Party of British Columbia	2001
B.C. Action Party	2001
B.C. Party	Parksville By-Election,
•	14 December 1998
British Columbia Citizens Alliance Now	2001
British Columbia Marijuana Party	2001
British Columbia Patriot Party	2001
Central Party	2001
Citizens Commonwealth Federation	2001
Common Sense, Community, Family Party	1996
Communist League	
Communist Party of British Columbia	
Council of British Columbians	
Family Coalition Party	
Freedom Party of British Columbia	
Gnu Democratic Rhino Reform	
	By-Election,
	17 February 1994
Green Party of British Columbia ¹	1991, 1996, 2001
Green-Go (Green Wing/Rhino)	1991
Hospice Movement	Matsqui By-Election,
•	17 February 1994
Human Race Party	1991
Independent	1991, 1996
Interdependence Party	1991
Liberal Party	1991, 1996, 2001
Libertarian	1991, 1996
Natural Law Party	1996
New Democratic Party	1991, 1996, 2001
New Populist Party	Point Grey By-Election,
	15 March 1989
Party of Citizens Who Have Decided To Think For Themselves and Be Their	
Own Politicians	2001
People's Front	2001
Progressive Conservative Party ²	1991, 1996, 2001
Progressive Democratic Alliance	1996
Reform Party	1991, 1996
Social Credit Party of British Columbia	1991, 1996
Unity Party of British Columbia	2001
Western Canada Concept	1991, 1996
Western Reform	2001

¹ Name varies. In 1991 it was designated the Green Party of British Columbia. In 1996 and 2001 it was designated the Green Party

Political Association of British Columbia.

² Name varies. In 1991 it was designated the B.C. Conservative Party. In 1996 it was designated the Progressive Conservative Party of B.C. and in 2001 the British Columbia Conservative Party.

ELECTED CANDIDATES 1987 – 2001

Name ¹	Election	Electoral District	Party ²
Abbott, George Malcolm	1996 2001	Shuswap Shuswap	LIB
Anderson, Val. J.	1991 1996 2001	Vancouver-Langara Vancouver-Langara Vancouver-Langara	LIB
Barisoff, Bill	1996 2001	Okanagan-Boundary Penticton-Okanagan Valley	LIB
Barlee, N. L. (Bill)	By-Election 8 June 1988 1991	Boundary-Similkameen Okanagan-Boundary	NDP
Barnes, Emery O.	1991	Vancouver-Burrard	NDP
Beattie, Jim	1991	Okanagan-Penticton	NDP
Bell, Pat	2001	Prince George North	LIB
Belsey, Bill	2001	North Coast	LIB
Bennett, Bill	2001	East Kootenay	LIB
Bhullar, Tony	2001	Surrey-Newton	LIB
Blencoe, Robin	1991	Victoria-Hillside Sat as Independent as of 4 April 1995.	NDP
Bloy, Harry	2001	Burquitlam	LIB
Bond, Shirley	2001	Prince George-Mount Robson	LIB
Boone, Lois R.	1991 1996	Prince George-Mount Robson Prince George-Mount Robson	NDP
Bray, Jeff	2001	Victoria-Beacon Hill	LIB
Brenzinger, Elayne	2001	Surrey-Whalley	LIB
Brewin, Gretchen	1991 1996	Victoria-Beacon Hill Victoria-Beacon Hill	NDP
Brice, Susan	2001	Saanich South	LIB
Bruce, Graham P.	2001	Cowichan-Ladysmith	LIB
Calendino, Pietro	1996	Burnaby North	NDP
Campbell, Gordon	By-Election 17 Feb. 1994 1996 2001	Vancouver-Quilchena Vancouver-Point Grey Vancouver-Point Grey	LIB
Cashore, John M.	1991 1996	Coquitlam-Maillardville Coquitlam-Maillardville	NDP
Charbonneau, Arthur L.	1991	Kamloops	NDP
Cheema, Gulzar	2001	Surrey-Panorama Ridge	LIB
Chisholm, Robert	1991	Chilliwack Sat as Independent as of 11 April 1995.	LIB

Name ¹	Election	Electoral District	Party ²
Chong, Ida	1996 2001	Oak Bay-Gordon Head Oak Bay-Gordon Head	LIB
Christensen, Tom	2001	Okanagan-Vernon	LIB
Chutter, Dave	2001	Yale-Lillooet	LIB
Clark, Christy	1996 2001	Port Moody-Burnaby Mountain Port Moody-Westwood	LIB LIB
Clark, Glen	1991 1996	Vancouver-Kingsway Vancouver-Kingsway	NDP
Cobb, Walt	2001	Cariboo South	LIB
Coell, Murray Robert	1996 2001	Saanich North and the Islands Saanich North and the Islands	LIB
Coleman, Rich	1996 2001	Fort Langley-Aldergrove	LIB
Collins, Gary See also Gary Farrell-Collins	2001	Vancouver-Fairview	LIB
Conroy, Ed	1991 1996	Rossland-Trail Rossland-Trail	NDP
Copping, Barbara E.	1991	Port Moody-Burnaby Mountain	NDP
Cowie, Art	1991 Resigned 9 November 1993	Vancouver-Quilchena	LIB
Cull, Elizabeth	By-Election 13 Dec. 1989 1991	Oak Bay-Gordon Head Oak Bay-Gordon Head	NDP
Dalton, Jeremy	1991 1996	West Vancouver-Capilano West Vancouver-Capilano Sat as an Independent as of 5 April 2000; returned to Liberal Caucus 10 July 2000; Independent as of 11 January 2000.	LIB
De Jong, Harry	1991 Resigned 1 November 1994	Abbotsford	SC
De Jong, Michael	By-Election 4 Feb. 1994 1996 2001	Matsqui Matsqui Abbotsford-Mount Lehman	LIB
Dosanjh, Ujjal	1991 1996	Vancouver-Kensington Vancouver-Kensington	NDP
Doyle, Jim	1991 1996	Columbia River-Revelstoke Columbia River-Revelstoke	NDP

Name ¹	Election	Electoral District	Party ²	
Dueck, Peter A.	1991 Resigned 30 November 1993	Matsqui Sat as Independent as of 11 February 1993.	SC	
Edwards, Anne	1991	Kootenay	NDP	
Evans, Corky	1991 1996	Nelson-Creston Nelson-Creston	NDP	
Falcon, Kevin	2001	Surrey-Cloverdale	LIB	
Farnworth, Michael C.	1991 1996	Port Coquitlam Port Coquitlam	NDP	
Farrell-Collins, Gary Appeared on the ballot of the 2001 General Election as Gary Farrell-Collins but was sworn in as Gary Collins. See also Gary Collins	1991 1996 2001	Fort Langley-Aldergrove Vancouver-Little Mountain Vancouver-Fairview	LIB	
Fox, Len	1991	Prince George-Ominica Sat as Reform Party as of 14 March 1994.	SC	
Gabelmann, Colin S.	1991	North Island	NDP	
Garden, Frank	1991	Cariboo North	NDP	
Giesbrecht, Helmut	1991 1996	Skeena Skeena	NDP	
Gillespie, Evelyn	1996	Comox Valley	NDP	
Gingell, Fred	1991 1996 Died 6 July 1999	Delta South Delta South	LIB	
Goodacre, Bill	1996	Bulkley Valley-Stikine	NDP	
Hagan, Anita	1991	New Westminster	NDP	
Hagen, Stan	2001	Comox Valley	LIB	
Halsey-Brandt, Greg	2001	Richmond Centre	LIB	
Hamilton, Arnie	2001	Esquimalt-Metchosin	LIB	
Hammell, Sue	1991 1996	Surrey-Green Timbers Surrey-Green Timbers	NDP	
Hansen, Colin Gordon	1996 2001	Vancouver-Quilchena Vancouver-Quilchena	LIB	
Hanson, Lyall	1991	Okanagan-Vernon Sat as Reform Party as of 11 May 1994.	SC	
Harcourt, Mike	1991	Vancouver-Mount Pleasant		
Harris, Roger Brendan	2001	Skeena		
Hartley, Bill	1991 1996	Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows		
Hawes, Randy	2001	Maple Ridge-Mission	LIB	

Name ¹ Election Electoral Dist		Electoral District	Party ²
Hawkins, Sindi	1996 2001	Okanagan West Kelowna-Mission	LIB
Hayer, Dave	2001	Surrey-Tynehead	LIB
Hogg, Gordon J.	By-Election 15 Sept. 1997 2001	Surrey-White Rock Surrey-White Rock	LIB
Hunter, Mike	2001	Nanaimo	LIB
Hurd, Wilf	1991 1996 Resigned 2 May 1997	Surrey-White Rock Surrey White Rock	LIB
Jackson, Frederick H.	1991	Kamloops-North Thompson	NPD
Janssen, Gerard A. M.	By-Election 19 Nov. 1988 1991 1996	Alberni Alberni Alberni	NDP
Jarvis, Daniel	1991 1996 2001	North Vancouver-Seymour North Vancouver-Seymour North Vancouver-Seymour	LIB
Johnson, Ken	2001	Vancouver-Fraserview	LIB
Jones, Barry	1991	Burnaby North	NDP
Jones, Ken	1991	Surrey-Cloverdale	LIB
Kasper, Rick F.G.	1991 1996	Malahat-Juan de Fuca Malahat-Juan de Fuca Sat as Independent as of 10 October 2000.	NDP
Kerr, Brian J.	2001	Malahat-Juan de Fuca	LIB
Kreuger, Kevin	1996 2001	Kamloops-North Thompson Kamloops-North Thompson	LIB
Krog, Leonard	1991	Parksville-Qualicum	NDP
Kwan, Jenny Wai Ching	1996 2001	Vancouver-Mount Pleasant Vancouver-Mount Pleasant	NDP
Lali, Harry S.	1991 1996	Yale-Lillooet Yale-Lillooet	NDP
Lee, Richard T.	2001	Burnaby North L	
Lekstrom, Blair	2001	Peace River South LIB	
Les, John	2001	Chilliwack-Sumas LIB	
Locke, Brenda	2001	Surrey-Green Timbers LIB	
Long, Harold	2001	Powell River-Sunshine Coast LIE	

Name ¹	Election	Electoral District	Party ²	
Lord, Margaret	1991	Comox Valley	NDP	
Lorti, Norm	1991	Delta North	NDP	
Lovick, Dale	1991 1996	Nanaimo Nanaimo	NDP	
MacKay, Dennis	2001	Bulkley Valley-Stikine	LIB	
MacPhail, Joy K.	1991 1996 2001	Vancouver-Hastings Vancouver-Hastings Vancouver-Hastings	NDP	
Manhas, Karn	2001	Port Coquitlam-Burke Mountain	LIB	
Marzari, Darlene R.	1991	Vancouver-Point Grey	NDP	
Masi, Reni	1996 2001	Delta North Delta North	LIB	
Mayencourt, Lorne	2001	Vancouver-Burard	LIB	
McGregor, Cathy	1996	Kamloops	NDP	
McKinnon, Bonnie	1996	Surrey-Cloverdale Sat as Independent as of 5 March 2001.	LIB	
McMahon, Wendy	2001	Columbia River-Revelstoke	LIB	
Miller, A. Daniel	1991 1996	North Coast North Coast	NDP	
Mitchell, David J.	1991	West Vancouver-Garibaldi Sat as an Independent Liberal as of 7 December 1992.	LIB	
Murray, Joyce	2001	New Westminster	LIB	
Nebbeling, Ted	1996 2001	West Vancouver-Garibaldi West Vancouver-Garibaldi	LIB	
Nettleton, Paul R.	1996 2001	Prince George-Omineca Prince George-Omineca	LIB	
Neufeld, Richard	1991	Peace River North	SC	
	1996	Sat as Reform Party as of 14 March 1994. Peace River North Sat as Liberal as of 7 October 1997.	RP	
	2001	Peace River North	LIB	
Nijjar, Rob	2001	Vancouver-Kingsway	LIB	
Nuraney, John	2001	Burnaby-Willingdon	LIB	
O'Neill, Shannon	1991	Shuswap		
Orcherton, Steve	1996	Vancouver-Hillside NDI		
Orr, Sheila	2001	Victoria-Hillside	LIB	
Pement, Jackie	1991	Bulkley Valley-Stikine NI		

Name ¹	Election	Electoral District	Party ²
Penner, Barry	1996 2001	Chilliwack Chilliwack-Kent	LIB
Perry, Tom	By-Election 15 March 1989 1991	Vancouver-Point Grey Vancouver-Little Mountain	NDP NDP
Petter, Andrew	1991 1996	Saanich South Saanich South	NDP
Plant, Geoff	1996 2001	Richmond-Steveston Richmond-Steveston	LIB
Priddy, Penny	1991 1996	Surrey-Newton Surrey-Newton	NDP
Pullinger, Jan	By-Election 15 March 1989 1991 1996	Nanaimo Cowichan-Ladysmith Cowichan-Ladysmith	NDP
Ramsey, Paul	1991 1996	Prince George North Prince George North	NDP
Randall, Fred	1991 1996	Burnaby-Edmonds Burnaby-Edmonds	NDP
Reid, Judith	By-Election 14 Dec. 1998 2001	Parksville-Qualicum Nanaimo-Parksville	LIB
Reid, Linda	1991 1996 2001	Richmond East Richmond East Richmond East	LIB
Reitsma, Paul	1996 Resigned 23 June 1998	Parksville-Qualicum	LIB
Richmond, Claude	2001	Kamloops	LIB
Robertson, Glenn	1996	North Island	NDP
Roddick, Val	By-Election 24 Nov. 1999 2001	Delta South Delta South	LIB
Sahota, Patty	2001	Burnaby-Edmonds	LIB
Sanders, April	1996	Okanagan-Vernon	LIB
Sanderson Visser, Rod	2001	North Island	LIB
Santori, Sandy	2001	West Kootenay-Boundary	LIB
Sawicki, Joan	1991 1996	Burnaby-Willingdon Burnaby-Willingdon	
Schreck, David D.	1991	North Vancouver-Lonsdale	NDP
Serwa, Clifford J.	1991	Okanagan West	SC

Name ¹	Election	Electoral District	Party ²	
Sihota, Moe	1991 1996	Esquimalt-Metchosin Esquimalt-Metchosin	NDP	
Simpson, Bernie	1991	Vancouver-Fairview	NDP	
Smallwood, Joan K.	1991 1996	Surrey-Whalley Surrey-Whalley	NDP	
Stephens, Lynn	1991 1996 2001	Langley Langley Langley	LIB	
Stevenson, Tim	1996	Vancouver-Burrard	NDP	
Steves, Harold	1991	Richmond-Steveston	NDP	
Stewart, Ken	2001	Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows	LIB	
Stewart, Richard	2001	Coquitlam-Maillardville	LIB	
Streifel, Dennis	1991 1996	Mission-Kent Mission-Kent	NDP	
Suffredine, Blair F.	2001	Nelson-Creston	LIB	
Sultan, Ralph	2001	West Vancouver-Capilano	LIB	
Symons, Doug	1991 1996	Richmond Centre Richmond Centre	LIB	
Tanner, Clive	1991	Saanich North and the Islands	LIB	
Гhorpe, Rick	1996 2001	Okanagan-Penticton Okanagan-Westside	LIB	
Trumper, Gillian	2001	Alberni-Qualicum	LIB	
Tyabji, Judi K.	1991	Okanagan East Sat as Progressive Democratic Alliance as of 3 December 1993.	LIB	
Van Dongen, John	By-Election 3 May 1995 1996 2001	Abbotsford Abbotsford Abbotsford-Clayburn	LIB	
Waddell, Ian	1996	Vancouver-Fraserview	NDP	
Walsh, Erda	1996	Kootenay	NDP	
Warnke, Allan	1991	Richmond-Stevenson Sat as Independent as of 28 April 1996.	LIB	
Weisbeck, John Allen	1996 2001	Okanagan East Kelowna-Lake Country	LIB	
Weisgerber, Jack S.	1991	Peace River South	SC	
	1996	Sat as Reform Party as of 14 March 1994. Peace River South Sat as Independent as of 28 November 1997.	RP	

Name ¹	Election	Electoral District	Party ²
Whittred, Katherine	1996 2001	North Vancouver-Lonsdale North Vancouver-Lonsdale	LIB
Wilson, Gordon F.	1991	Powell River-Sunshine Coast Sat as Progressive Democratic Alliance as of 5 December 1993.	LIB
	1996	Powell River-Sunshine Coast Sat as New Democratic Party as of 29 January 1999.	PDA
Wilson, John David	1996 2001	Cariboo North Cariboo North	LIB
Wong, Patrick	2001	Vancouver-Kensington	LIB
Zirnhelt, David	By-Election 20 Sept. 1989 1991 1996	Cariboo Cariboo South Cariboo South	NDP

¹ The form of name is taken from the *Statement of Votes* which is the form of name which appeared on the printed ballot.

² Party abbreviations are those used by Elections BC and the *Electoral History of British Columbia*, 1871–1986. LIB – Liberal Party, NDP – New Democratic Party, PDA – Progressive Democratic Alliance, RP-Reform Party, SC – Social Credit Party of British Columbia.

PLEBISCITES AND REFERENDA

POPULAR NAME: Recall and Initiative Referendum

DATE: 17 October 1991

CONCURRENT ELECTORAL ACTIVITY: General Election

ENABLING LEGISLATION: Referendum Act, RSBC 1996, c. 400

PURPOSE: To ascertain the view of the voters on two questions:

QUESTION A

Should voters be given the right, by legislation, to vote between elections for the removal of their member of the Legislative Assembly?

YES	1,090,023	80.89%
NO	257,522	19.11%
REIECTED	135,363	

QUESTION B

Should voters be given the right, by legislation, to propose questions that the government of British Columbia must submit to voters by referendum?

YES	1,095,100	83.02%
NO	223,902	16.98%
REJECTED	163,906	

LEGISLATIVE CONSEQUENCES: Passage of *Recall and Initiative Act* (RSBC 1996 c. 398), into force 24 February 1995.

Detailed Referendum results are included with the results of the General Election of 1991.

Initiative Petitions

The Recall and Initiative Act (RSBC 1996, c. 398) permits voters in British Columbia to propose new laws or initiate changes to existing laws.

Any registered voter can apply to have a petition issued by the Chief Electoral Officer. If more than 10% of the registered voters in each of the electoral districts, who were registered to vote on the date the petition was issued, sign an initiative petition within the 90-day canvassing period, the Chief Electoral Officer sends a copy of the verified petition and draft Bill to the Select Standing Committee on Legislative Initiatives.

The Select Standing Committee must meet within 30 days of receipt of the petition and draft Bill. From their first meeting, the Committee has 90 days to consider the legislative proposal and either table a report recommending introduction of the draft Bill, or refer the initiative to the Chief Electoral Officer for an initiative vote.

The Recall and Initiative Act was brought into force on 24 February 1995.

Petition I95001: An Act to Balance the Budget and Retire Provincial Debt

Proponent: Thomas McArthur Opponent: None registered

Petition Issued: November 20, 1995

Outcome: The petition was not returned by the proponent by the deadline of February 19, 1996.

Petition I95002: An Act to Remove School Tax Levies from Residential Properties

Proponent: Terry Milne Opponent: None registered

Petition Issued: December 11, 1995

Outcome: The petition was not returned by the proponent by the deadline of March 11, 1996.

Petition I95003: An Act Regarding Pensions for Members of the Legislative Assembly

Proponent: Patrick D. Finnigan Opponent: None registered

Petition Issued: The petition was scheduled for issue on December 11, 1995 but was withdrawn by the

proponent on October 30, 1995.

Outcome: None.

Petition I96001: An Act to Prohibit the Hunting of Bears

Proponent: Paul George

Opponent group: Wildlife Management Alliance

Petition Issued: September 9, 1996

Outcome: The Petition was returned on December 9, 1996 with 88,357 signatures falling short of the 222,272

signatures required.

Petition IP-2000-001: Child Services Equality Act

Proponent: Jim McDermott Opponent: None registered Petition Issued: May 23, 2000

Outcome: The Petition was returned on August 21, 2000 with 4,325 signatures falling short of the 202,984

signatures required.

The number of signatures required for individual petitions varies as it is based on the number of registered voters who were registered to vote on the date the petition was issued.

RECALL PETITIONS

The *Recall and Initiative Act* (RSBC 1996, c. 398) allows voters in British Columbia to remove a Member of the Legislative Assembly between elections.

Any individual can apply to the Chief Electoral Officer for a Petition for the recall of the Member for the electoral district in which the applicant is registered to vote. A Member cannot be recalled during the first 18 months after election.

If the application for a Petition is complete and meets the requirements of the Act, a petition is issued and the proponent has 60 days to collect signatures from 40% of the voters who were registered to vote in the Member's electoral district at the last election and who are currently registered to vote in British Columbia.

If the petition is successful, the Member ceases to hold office and a By-Election must be called within 90 days.

British Columbia is the only jurisdiction in Canada with recall legislation. *The Recall and Initiative Act* was brought into force on February 24, 1995.

Petition R97001

Proponent: Pertti Harkonen

Member: Paul Ramsey, NDP, Prince George North

Petition Issued: December 5, 1997

Outcome: Failed

Petition R97002

Proponent: G. Lorne Sexton

Member: Helmut Giesbrecht, NDP, Skeena

Petition Issued: December 5, 1997 Outcome: Withdrawn February 3, 1998

Petition R97003

Proponent: John How

Member: Helmut Giesbrecht, NDP, Skeena

Petition Issued: December 12, 1997 Outcome: Withdrawn January 21, 1998

Petition R98001

Proponent: Robert David Bradley

Member: Gordon Campbell, LIB, Vancouver-Point Grey

Petition Issued: January 13, 1998

Outcome: Failed

Petition R98002

Proponent: James Loughery

Member: Paul Ramsey, NDP, Prince George North

Petition Issued: January 16, 1998

Outcome: Failed

Petition R98003

Proponent: Walter Bueckert

Member: Rich Coleman, LIB, Fort Langley-Aldergrove

Petition Issued: January 27, 1998

Outcome: Failed

Petition R98004

Proponent: Robert Saint Amour

Member: Evelyn Gillespie, NDP, Comox Valley

Petition Issued: February 12, 1998

Outcome: Failed

Petition R98005

Proponent: Mark Robinson

Member: Paul Reitsma, LIB, Parksville-Qualicum

Petition Issued: April 15, 1998

Outcome: Member resigned on June 23, 1998

Petition R98006

Proponent: Robert Saint Amour

Member: Evelyn Gillespie, NDP, Comox Valley

Petition Issued: July 28, 1998 Outcome: Withdrawn July 23, 1998

Petition R98007

Proponent: Bob Viergever

Member: Paul Ramsey, NDP, Prince George North

Petition Issued: October 7, 1998

Outcome: Withdrawn, December 7, 1998

Petition R99001

Proponent: Mark Richard Francioli

Member: Michael Farnworth, NDP, Port Coquitlam

Petition Issued: May 20, 1999

Outcome: Failed

CHIEF ELECTORAL OFFICERS AND REGISTRARS GENERAL OF VOTERS

Harry M. Goldberg Appointed Chief Electoral Officer by Order in Council, 4 March 1980. Rescinded

2 May 1990.

Robert A. Patterson Appointed Chief Electoral Officer by Order in Council, 2 May 1990.

Appointed Chief Electoral Officer as an independent officer of the Legislature,

29 April 1996, following revision of the Election Act (RSBC 1996, c. 106).

In earlier years the offices of Chief Electoral Officer and Registrar General of Voters were jointly held by the Chief Electoral Officer. For a brief history of the two offices, see *Electoral History of British Columbia*, 1871-1986, p. 427.

The *Election Act* (RSBC 1996, c. 106) no longer provides for the office of Registrar General of Voters. The function of maintaining the provincial voters list is now included in the overall responsibilities of the Chief Electoral Officer.

Returning Officers, Registrars of Voters and Voters List 1991^{1}

Electoral District	Registered Voters	Returning Officer	Registrar
Abbotsford	25,630	Neil Caddey	Michael E. Carroll
Alberni	18,047	Johannes (Joe) Ruissen	Joe Stanhope
Bulkley Valley-Stikine	16,061	Barbara McGowan	Donald G. McMillan
Burnaby-Edmonds	29,762	Don Wrigley	Charlene Meehan
Burnaby North	27,516	Kay Coleman	Charlene Meehan
Burnaby-Willingdon	32,933	Carole Legge	Charlene Meehan
Cariboo North	17,584	Herman Van de Weghe	Robert Woods
Cariboo South	19,679	Robert (Bob) Court	Robert Woods
Chilliwack	30,867	Martha Wiens	James D. Hay
Columbia River-Revelstoke	18,822	Roy Patrick	Dodie Hodgins
Comox Valley	34,306	William (Bill) Mitchell	Daryl A. Egeland
Coquitlam-Maillardville	32,082	Rosetta Perreault	Michael E. Carroll
Cowichan-Ladysmith	29,080	Robert (Bob) Kennedy	J. Brian Johnston
Delta North	27,051	Merrilee Harris	Michael E. Carroll
Delta South	27,632	Sandra Taylor	Michael E. Carroll
Esquimalt-Metchosin	31,524	George Merz	Frances D. Miller
Fort Langley-Aldergrove	25,990	Milton E. Stein	Michael E. Carroll
Kamloops	28,872	Alex Backmeyer	Lillian Abbott
Kamloops-North Thompson	20,328	Debbie Beattie	Lillian Abbott
Kootenay	21,792	Byron English	Wally Anderson
Langley	24,539	Diane Wedgewood	Michael E. Carroll
Malahat-Juan de Fuca	25,841	Marian Norton	Frances D. Miller
Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows	33,760	Barbara Makinson	J.A. (Sandy) Lane
Matsqui	26,333	Chuck Wiebe	Michael E. Carroll
Mission-Kent	23,556	Michelle Woodward	J.A. (Sandy) Lane
Nanaimo	29,778	Shirley Lance	Jeanne Blue
Nelson-Creston	23,234	Don Porteous	Peter W.J. Lee
New Westminster	29,323	Judy Walker	Michael E. Carroll
North Coast	16,036	Brian Roberts	Ean H. Gower
North Island	23,936	Shirley (Sam) Fell	Jeff MacKenzie
North Vancouver-Lonsdale	26,645	Daphne McLean	Charlene Meehan
North Vancouver-Seymour	30,346	Lorna K. Dudley	Charlene Meehan
Oak Bay-Gordon Head	32,453	Joan M. Giles	Frances D. Miller
Okanagan-Boundary	20,379	Lockie A. Miles	Douglas R. Blatchford
Okanagan East	30,451	Bill Baker	W. A. (Tony) Tozer
Okanagan-Penticton	29,602	Arthur (Art) Wainwright	James Torrance
Okanagan-Vernon	30,341	Thelma Trickett	Norman G. Schulz
Okanagan West	38,523	Lorraine Becker	W. A. (Tony) Tozer
Parksville-Qualicum	33,142	Lois (Lea) Petrygan	Jeanne Blue
Peace River North	15,407	William (Bill) Wallace	James R. Frey
Peace River South	18,238	Arthur (Art) Cameron	Stuart W. Minifie
Port Coquitlam	33,588	Percy Hesla	Michael E. Carroll
Port Moody-Burnaby Mountain	29,917	Donald A. Copan	Charlene Meehan
Powell River-Sunshine Coast	25,788	Alio (Al) Mantoani	Byron Johnston

RETURNING OFFICERS, REGISTRARS OF VOTERS AND VOTERS LIST 1991¹ — Continued

Electoral District	Registered Voters	Returning Officer	Registrar
Prince George-Mount Robson	16,797	Lorraine Grant	William C. Christie
Prince George North	20,021	Alexander M. Clark	William C. Christie
Prince George-Omineca	19,300	Everett G. Stevens	William C. Christie
Richmond Centre	25,240	Vila Nova Carvalho	Michael E. Carroll
Richmond East	22,809	Donna Bradshaw	Michael E. Carroll
Richmond-Steveston	22,805	Nadine Jones	Michael E. Carroll
Rossland-Trail	21,444	Barbara A. McKay	Robin Bender
Saanich North and the Islands	31,903	Joan Beattie	Frances D. Miller
Saanich South	29,141	Mac Carpenter	Frances D. Miller
Shuswap	28,800	Sidney (Sid) Bedwell	Daryl J. Koskimaki
Skeena	16,828	Elaine Johnson	Randy A. Trombley
Surrey-Cloverdale	30,462	Mazoe Kaufman	Michael E. Carroll
Surrey-Green Timbers	26,899	Hank Pulles	Michael E. Carroll
Surrey-Newton	32,444	Rita Waenink	Michael E. Carroll
Surrey-Whalley	22,218	Jean Stoney	Michael E. Carroll
Surrey-White Rock	35,942	Lorraine Livesey	Michael E. Carroll
Vancouver-Burrard	29,952	Tamarah Karol	Charlene Meehan
Vancouver-Fraserview	25,550	Bill Hutchinson	Charlene Meehan
Vancouver-Hastings	26,368	Lorraine Waslen	Charlene Meehan
Vancouver-Kensington	25,521	Tej Gill	Charlene Meehan
Vancouver-Kingsway	24,784	Mario Caravetta	Charlene Meehan
Vancouver-Langara	27,493	Lael Hamilton	Charlene Meehan
Vancouver-Little Mountain	32,915	Joe Dang	Charlene Meehan
Vancouver-Mount Pleasant	25,868	Peta Harakal	Charlene Meehan
Vancouver-Point Grey	33,856	Isobel Austin	Charlene Meehan
Vancouver-Quilchena	28,941	Randy V. Gerein	Charlene Meehan
Victoria-Beacon Hill	31,652	Joan Wallace	Frances D. Miller
Victoria-Hillside	30,280	Tom Duckitt	Frances D. Miller
West Vancouver-Capilano	29,933	Derrick Humphreys	Charlene Meehan
West Vancouver-Garibaldi	24,706	Patricia Crawford	Charlene Meehan
Yale-Lillooet	21,468	L. Pat Lean	Gordon Swan
TOTAL	1,989,054		

 $^{^{\}rm 1}$ Returning officers for By-elections are listed with the individual By-election.

District Electoral Officers, Registrars of Voters and Voters List 1996^{1}

Electoral District	Registered Voters	District Electoral Officer ²	District Registrar ²
Abbotsford	31,712	Stanley E. Forbes	Christine L. Wiebe
Alberni	19,516	Johannes Ruissen	Donna Cadieux
Bulkley Valley-Stikine	18,241	Barbara McGowan	Donald G. McMillan
Burnaby-Edmonds	30,460	Barbara Richardson	Charlene Meehan
Burnaby North	27,250	Kay Coleman	Charlene Meehan
Burnaby-Willingdon	32,406	Carole Legge	Charlene Meehan
Cariboo North	19,418	Dora McMillan	Robert Jaskela
Cariboo South	21,785	Gary A. Roberts	Robert Woods
Chilliwack	35,838	Martha Wiens	James D. Hay
Columbia River-Revelstoke	20,843	Roy Patrick	Dodie Hodgins
Comox Valley	42,619	William R. Mitchell	Daryl A. Egeland
Coquitlam-Maillardville	32,719	Robert W. Holt	Christine L. Wiebe
Cowichan-Ladysmith	33,375	Sharon Greene	Byron Johnston
Delta North	27,470	Kathy Peterson	Christine L. Wiebe
Delta South	30,717	Janice Cook	Christine L. Wiebe
Esquimalt-Metchosin	34,220	George Merz	Frances D. Miller
Fort Langley-Aldergrove	33,522	Milton Stein	Christine L. Wiebe
Kamloops	33,137	Alex Backmeyer	Walter Poohachoff
Kamloops-North Thompson	23,339	Debbie Beattie	Walter Poohachoff
Kootenay	24,422	Byron English	Marilynne Ferguson
Langley	27,360	Frederic C. McNeal	Christine L. Wiebe
Malahat-Juan de Fuca	30,284	John T. McDonald	Frances D. Miller
Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows	38,522	Linda May Johnson	J.A. (Sandy) Lane
Matsqui	31,594	Chuck Wiebe	Christine L. Wiebe
Mission-Kent	26,424	Michelle Woodward	J.A. (Sandy) Lane
Nanaimo	33,207	Shirley Lance	Jeanne Blue
Nelson-Creston	27,293	Rob Switzer	Erich Breitkreuz
New Westminster	31,879	Susan G. Fenton	Christine L. Wiebe
North Coast	17,912	Brian Roberts	Ean H. Gower
North Island	26,446	Shirley Fell	Jeff MacKenzie
North Vancouver-Lonsdale	28,574	Daphne McLean	Charlene Meehan
North Vancouver-Seymour	32,798	Nola D. Embley	Charlene Meehan
Oak Bay-Gordon Head	33,476	Joan M. Giles	Frances D. Miller
Okanagan-Boundary	24,471	Lockie A. Miles	Douglas R. Blatchford
Okanagan East	34,968	Bill Baker	W.A. (Tony) Tozer
Okanagan-Penticton	33,856	James E. Rheaume	James Torrance
Okanagan-Vernon	35,354	Thelma Trickett	Franco Marolla
Okanagan West	47,909	Lorraine Becker	W.A. (Tony) Tozer
Parksville-Qualicum	42,549	Lois Petrygan	Jeanne Blue
Peace River North	18,165	Florence J. Miller	James R. Frey
Peace River South	19,619	Arthur Cameron	Wendy Benham
Port Coquitlam	43,544	Dianna Brown	Christine L. Wiebe
Port Moody-Burnaby Mountain	31,552	Donald A. Copan	Charlene Meehan
Powell River-Sunshine Coast		Deborah A. Lesuk	
1 owen river-bunshine Coast	29,389	Debutan A. Lesuk	Gary Swift

DISTRICT ELECTORAL OFFICERS, REGISTRARS OF VOTERS AND VOTERS LIST 1996¹ — Continued

Electoral District	District Registered Voters District Electoral Officer ²		District Registrar ²	
Prince George-Mount Robson	18,290	Lorraine Grant	William C. Christie	
Prince George North	22,271	Alexander M. Clark	William C. Christie	
Prince George-Omineca	22,229	Louis A. Jewitt	William C. Christie	
Richmond Centre	26,241	Vila Nova Carvalho	Christine L. Wiebe	
Richmond East	25,822	Donna M. Bradshaw	Christine L. Wiebe	
Richmond-Steveston	23,006	Nadine Jones	Christine L. Wiebe	
Rossland-Trail	22,784	P. Michael Taenzer	Robin Bender	
Saanich North and the Islands	36,247	Joan Beattie	Frances D. Miller	
Saanich South	32,204	Mac Carpenter	Frances D. Miller	
Shuswap	34,454	Sid Bedwell	Daryl J. Koskimaki	
Skeena	18,894	Elizabeth G. Kofoed	Randy A. Trombley	
Surrey-Cloverdale	39,904	Mazoe Kaufman	Christine L. Wiebe	
Surrey-Green Timbers	29,922	Hank Pulles	Christine L. Wiebe	
Surrey-Newton	39,876	Rita Waenink	Christine L. Wiebe	
Surrey-Whalley	22,787	Joe Degagne	Christine L. Wiebe	
Surrey-White Rock	41,109	Lorraine Livesey	Christine L. Wiebe	
Vancouver-Burrard	34,585	Stan Roberts	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Fraserview	26,726	Alan Tapper	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Hastings	27,260	Joe Dang	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Kensington	26,954	Marion R. Hawryzki	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Kingsway	27,063	Mario Caravetta	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Langara	26,965	Lael Hamilton	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Little Mountain	35,332	Marilyn Golub	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Mount Pleasant	29,255	Barbara-Anne Eddy	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Point Grey	36,608	Jan M. Pierce	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Quilchena	29,973	Peta Harakal	Charlene Meehan	
Victoria-Beacon Hill	33,697	Joan Wallace	Frances D. Miller	
Victoria-Hillside	32,382	Patricia Eassie	Frances D. Miller	
West Vancouver-Capilano	30,782	Derrick Humphreys	Charlene Meehan	
West Vancouver-Garibaldi	29,666	Patricia Crawford	Charlene Meehan	
Yale-Lillooet	23,982	L. Pat Lean	Gordon Swan	
TOTAL	2,227,424			

¹ Returning officers for By-Elections are listed with the individual By-Election.
² New terminology was introduced in the 1996 General Election with a revised *Election Act*. District Electoral Officers (formerly Returning Officers) were appointed by the Chief Electoral Officer under Section 18 of the *Election Act* to conduct the election in the electoral district. District Registrars were appointed by the Chief Electoral Officer under Section 22 of the *Election Act* with responsibility for voter registration in the electoral district.

District Electoral Officers, Registrars of Voters and Voters List 2001^{1}

Electoral District	Registered Voters	District Electoral Officer	District Registrar	
Abbotsford-Clayburn	24,556	Mario Caravetta	Chris Wiebe	
Abbotsford-Mount Lehman	26,040	Helen Lockhart	Chris Wiebe	
Alberni-Qualicum	33,033	Ann Chandler	Sven Buemann	
Bulkley Valley-Stikine	18,150	Barbara McGowan	Don McMillan	
Burnaby-Edmonds	27,071	Barbara E. Richardson	Charlene Meehan	
Burnaby North	28,587	Jutta Clarke	Charlene Meehan	
Burnaby-Willingdon	26,336	Bill Hutchinson	Charlene Meehan	
Burquitlam	28,112	Donald A. Copan	Charlene Meehan	
Cariboo North	21,440	Darlene Dorsey	Deborah Lipscombe	
Cariboo South	22,162	Gary A. Roberts	Wendy Benham	
Chilliwack-Kent	25,884	Martha Wiens	James Hay	
Chilliwack-Sumas	27,017	Valerie Nessel	James Hay	
Columbia River-Revelstoke	20,166	Roy F. Patrick	Dodie Hodgins	
Comox Valley	37,028	Kristie Lee Woodrow	Jeff MacKenzie	
Coquitlam-Maillardville	28,492	Robert Johnston	Chris Wiebe	
Cowichan-Ladysmith	31,855	Donna Dawe	Byron Johnston	
Delta North	27,213	Denis Weiss	Chris Wiebe	
Delta South	29,868	Margaret Cooke	Chris Wiebe	
East Kootenay	24,084	Michael Redfern	Marilynne Ferguson	
Esquimalt-Metchosin	30,114	Ken Schaalje	Fran Miller	
Fort Langley-Aldergrove	33,086	Milton E. Stein	Chris Wiebe	
Kamloops	29,881	Terry Dixon	Walter Poohachoff	
Kamloops-North Thompson	30,297	Sharon E. Lyons	Walter Poohachoff	
Kelowna-Lake Country	33,488	Dennis Campbell	Hana Loken/Jane Royle	
Kelowna-Mission	35,323	Leslie E. Stacey	Hana Loken/Jane Royle	
Langley	31,298	Donna M. Bradshaw	Chris Wiebe	
Malahat-Juan de Fuca	31,243	Ian Fraser	Fran Miller	
Maple Ridge-Mission	32,350	Doug Powell	James A. (Sandy) Lane	
Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows	31,793	Linda May Johnson	James A. (Sandy) Lane	
Nanaimo	31,412	Shirley Lance	Chris Reich	
Nanaimo-Parksville	37,139	Alan F. Jay	Chris Reich	
Nelson-Creston	29,233	Rob Switzer	Barbara Henry	
New Westminster	31,784	Susan G. Fenton	Chris Wiebe	
North Coast	16,458	Brian Roberts	Perry Slump	
North Island	32,883	Barbara M. Morgan	Jeff MacKenzie	
North Vancouver-Lonsdale	28,101	Daphne J. McLean	Charlene Meehan	
North Vancouver-Seymour	32,554	Hans W. Rerup	Charlene Meehan	
Oak Bay-Gordon Head	33,817	Patricia Maclean	Fran Miller	
Okanagan-Vernon	35,638	Thelma J. Trickett	Franco Marolla	
Okanagan-Westside	29,976	Carol T. Hall	Hana Loken/Jane Royle	
Peace River North	16,527	Jim R. Frey	K. Marie Moore	
Peace River South	16,028	Giles C. Dudley	Garry Fuhr	
Penticton-Okanagan Valley	36,615	June D. Smith	Jim Torrance	

District Electoral Officers, Registrars of Voters and Voters List 2001¹ — Contined

Electoral District	Registered Voters	District Electoral Officer	District Registrar	
Port Coquitlam-Burke				
Mountain	29,602	Dianna M. Brown	Chris Wiebe	
Port Moody-Westwood	31,057	Josie Simnett	Charlene Meehan	
Powell River-Sunshine Coast	30,763	Deb Lesuk	Robert Woods	
Prince George-Mount Robson	21,141	E. Lorraine Grant	William Christie	
Prince George North	21,137	Lou Jewitt	William Christie	
Prince George-Omineca	23,155	John Norman	William Christie	
Richmond Centre	24,495	Vila Nova Carvalho	Chris Wiebe	
Richmond East	25,706	Debbie Nider	Chris Wiebe	
Richmond-Steveston	28,770	Jackie Asante	Chris Wiebe	
Saanich North and the Islands	37,480	Joan E. Beattie	Fran Miller	
Saanich South	32,116	Jacques Leclair	Fran Miller	
Shuswap	32,050	Ted Hillary	Erich Breitkreuz	
Skeena	18,506	Marjorie Phelps	Gordon L. Fox	
Surrey-Cloverdale	28,684	Mazoe B. Kaufman	Chris Wiebe	
Surrey-Green Timbers	23,291	Peter Butzelaar	Chris Wiebe	
Surrey-Newton	20,974	Rita Waenink	Chris Wiebe	
Surrey-Panorama Ridge	23,753	Triena Marples	Chris Wiebe	
Surrey-Tynehead	27,954	Hank Pulles	Chris Wiebe	
Surrey-Whalley	22,041	Bill Bouwman	Chris Wiebe	
Surrey-White Rock	35,137	Lorraine Livesey	Chris Wiebe	
Vancouver-Burrard	37,400	Stan Roberts	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Fairview	36,690	Debra S. Vaglio	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Fraserview	25,667	Pat Fenner	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Hastings	28,433	Joe K. Dang	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Kensington	26,699	Audrey A. Davis	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Kingsway	24,948	Gordon Mah	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Langara	26,476	Colleen A. Miller	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Mount Pleasant	27,480	Bill Bush	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Point Grey	36,554	Jan M. Pierce	Charlene Meehan	
Vancouver-Quilchena	31,155	Brian J. Clark	Charlene Meehan	
Victoria-Beacon Hill	36,775	Joan M. Wallace	Fran Miller	
Victoria-Hillside	30,602	Barbara D. Gillespie	Fran Miller	
West Kootenay-Boundary	29,230	P.Michael Taenzer	Wayne Hakanson	
West Vancouver-Capilano	29,577	Christiane Markgraf	Charlene Meehan	
West Vancouver-Garibaldi	31,415	Donald McMeeken	Charlene Meehan	
Yale-Lillooet	23,875	Pat Lean	Gordon Swan	
TOTAL	2,254,920			

 $^{^{\}rm 1}$ Returning officers for By-elections are listed with the individual By-election.

ROYAL AND SPECIAL COMMISSIONS ON ELECTIONS

1987

Royal Commission on Electoral Boundaries

Appointed: April 9, 1987 (Order-In-Council 690) under the *Inquiry Act*, Part II.

Commissioner: Judge Thomas Kemp Fisher sitting as sole Commissioner.

The Royal Commission was originally appointed to consider only electoral districts that returned two members to the Legislature. This mandate was amended on 17 September 1987, to a consideration of all electoral districts and their boundaries.

The Preliminary Report of Proposed Boundaries for British Columbia Electoral Districts was submitted on 24 May 1988. Following further public consultation, a Final Report was submitted in December, 1988 which recommended 75 single-member electoral districts with no more than a 25% variation from strict electoral equality.

These recommendations were brought into effect 19 September 1991 with the dissolution of the 34th Legislative Assembly.

1997

Electoral Boundaries Commission

Appointed: December 3, 1997 under the *Electoral Boundaries Commission Act* (RSBC 1996, c. 107 and amendments) to provide for an independent, non-partisan, statutory commission which would review the Province's electoral boundaries on a regular basis.

Chair, Judge Josiah Wood, Q.C., Commissioner Rev. Katherine Hough and Commissioner Robert Patterson.

The Commission reported to the Legislature 3 December 1998 with amendments submitted 3 June 1999 after a period of public consultation. It recommended an increase from 75 to 79 electoral districts to compensate for population growth in the Lower Mainland. Several other districts were realigned.

These recommendations were implemented in a new *Electoral Districts Act* (SBC 1999 c. 31) which received Royal Assent on 15 July 1999 with the new electoral districts coming into effect 18 April 2001 with the dissolution of the 36th Parliament.

SELECT LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEES ON ELECTIONS

B.C. Legislative Assembley. Special Committee on Electoral Boundaries

A Special Committee was approved by the Legislature, 22 June 1988 to consider the recommendations of the Royal Commission on Electoral Boundaries (Fisher).

Chair, Jim Rabbitt (MLA, Yale-Lillooet), Deputy Chair, Angus Ree (MLA, North Vancouver-Capilano).

The Special Committee submitted its report to the Legislature on 29 March 1989 without making any specific recommendations.

B.C. Legislative Assembly. Special Committee to Appoint the Chief Electoral Officer

The *Election Act* (RSBC 1996 C.106) requires that the Chief Electoral Officer be appointed on the unanimous recommendation of a special committee of the Legislature. A committee was struck and reported on 20 December 1995. The report was accepted by the Legislature on 25 April 1996 and Robert A. Patterson was subsequently appointed as Chief Electoral Officer and an officer of the Legislature.

Chair, Mike Farnworth (MLA, Port Coquitlam), Deputy Chair, Gary Farrell-Collins (MLA, Fort Langley-Aldergrove).

Statutory History of Election Law in British Columbia, 1987 – 2001

Citation	Enactment	Notes		
SBC 1985 c. 3	Constitution Amendment Act. Assented to 21 February 1985.	Increases number of electoral districts to 52. Alters the boundaries of Surrey creating Surrey-Guildford-Whalley, Surrey-Newton and Surrey-White Rock-Cloverdale. Total members: 69.		
SBC 1985 c. 5	Election Amendment Act, 1984. Assented to 21 February 1985.	Removes differences in language defining eligibility to vote for men and women. Voting forms are no longer defined in the <i>Election Act</i> .		
SBC 1985 c. 68	Charter of Rights Amendment Act, 1985. Assented to 2 December 1985.	Changes language of the <i>Election Act</i> to remove gender differences.		
SBC 1988 c. 2	Election Amendment Act, 1987. Assented to 11 March 1988.	Modifies the duties of the Chief Electoral Officer, the registration of voters and voting by disabled or absentee voters.		
SBC 1989 c. 40	Supreme Court Act. Assented to 28 June 1989.	The Supreme Court of British Columbia rather than the County Court becomes the court of appeal for election matters.		
SBC 1989 c. 65	Electoral Boundaries Commission Act. Assented to 20 July 1989.	Commission is provided for to recommend boundaries for 75 electoral districts with no more than 25% variation from equality amongst districts.		
SBC 1990 c. 39	Electoral Districts Act. Assented to 27 July 1990. Came into effect when the 35th Parliament was dissolved 19 September 1991.	Sets out the schedule of 75 single- member electoral districts as recommended by the Electoral Boundaries Commission.		
SBC 1992 c. 72	Election Amendment Act, 1992. Assented to 3 July 1992.	Reduces voting age from 19 to 18 and increases opportunities for registration on election day.		
SBC 1994 c. 49, s. 4	Miscellaneous Statutes Amendment Act, 1994. Assented to 8 July 1994.	Changes the <i>Election Act</i> to cancel the general enumeration scheduled for May 1994 and gives the Chief Electoral Officer discretion in how enumerations may be ordered and the voter's list maintained.		
SBC 1994 c. 56	Recall and Initiative Act. Assented to 8 July 1994.	Allows for the recall of a Member between elections and for citizen initiatives to be brought forward for referendum or enactment.		

Statutory History of Election Law in British Columbia, 1987 – 2001 — Continued

Citation	Enactment	Notes
SBC 1995 c. 51	Election Act. Assented to 13 July 1995.	General revision of the <i>Act</i> . The Chief Electoral Officer becomes an officer of the Legislature. Political parties are now required to register and rules are established for election spending.
SBC 1996 c. 18	Electoral Boundary Commission Amendment Act. Assented to 15 August 1996.	Authorizes the Commission to make proposals of up to 81 electoral districts.
SBC 1997 c. 17	Electoral Boundaries Commission Amendment Act, 1997. Assented to 28 July 1997.	Changes rules for Commission members' remuneration.
SBC 1999 c. 31	Electoral Districts Act. Assented to 15 July 1999. Came into effect when the 36th Parliament was dissolved: 18 April 2001.	Increases number of electoral districts from 75 to 79.
SBC 1999 c. 44, s. 44	Election Act, S. 7 (2). Assented to 16 July 1999.	Modifies the <i>Act</i> to specify the treatment of the Chief Electoral Officer for pension purposes.
SBC 2000 c. 14	Electoral Districts Amendment Act, 2000. Assented to 29 June 2000.	Corrects errors in the description of electoral district boundaries. Number of districts remains at 79.
SBC 2000 c.2 4, s. 14 and 15	Definition of Spouse Amendment Act, 2000. Assented to 6 July 2000.	Changes the definition of "spouse" in the <i>Election Act</i> to include same-sex couples.
SBC 2001 c. 36	Constitution (Fixed Election Dates) Amendment Act, 2001. Assented to 27 August 2001. To come into force by regulation.	Amends the <i>Constitution Act</i> to require a General Election on the 2nd Tuesday of May in the 4th calendar year following the most recent General Election.

Electoral Redistribution in British Columbia 1987 – 2001

Act	Royal Assent	In effect for General Election	# of Electoral Districts	# of Members
Constitution Amendment Act SBC 1985 c. 3 Increased number of members from 57 to 69 and altered the boundaries of Surrey creating Surrey-Guildford-Whalley, Surrey-Newton and Surrey-White Rock-Cloverdale. Multi-member ridings retained.	21 February 1985	1986	52	69
Electoral Districts Act SBC 1990 c. 39 Multi-member ridings eliminated and replaced by 75 single-member electoral districts.	22 July 1990	1991	75	75
Electoral Districts Act SBC 1999 c. 31 Number of districts and members increased from 75 to 79.	15 July 1999	2001	79	79

ELECTION ACT REGULATIONS

Regulation 371/95 Deposited 30 August 1995

Election Financing Regulation

Sets out the format for candidates, political parties and constituency associations to report election expenses.

Regulation 421/95 Deposited 11 October 1995

Voter Registration Regulation

Sets out the application form for voter registration under the *Election Act*, Section 35.

Regulation 129/96 Deposited 2 May 1996

Election Communications Regulation

Excludes "hamburger polls" from the limitations placed on opinion surveys under the Election Act.

Regulation 431/99 Deposited 15 December 1999

Advertising Sponsor Disclosure Report Regulation

Sets out the form for reporting sponsored election advertising under the Election Act. 244.

Regulation 433/99 Deposited 15 December 1999

Leadership Contestant Financing Regulations

Sets out the form for reporting expenses incurred by contestants for the leadership of registered political parties.

Regulation 434/99 Deposited 15 December 1999

Political Party and Constituency Association Financial Reports Regulation

Sets out the format for registered political parties and constituency associations to report annually on their finances.

CANDIDATES WHO RAN IN MORE THAN ONE ELECTORAL DISTRICT

None. The last candidate to run in more than one electoral district was in 1933. The current *Election Act*, Section 52 (2), does not permit an individual to run in more than one electoral district.

CONTROVERTED AND VOIDED ELECTIONS

None. A voided election requires the holding of a new election. A controverted election sets aside the original election results and declares a different candidate elected.

ELECTED CANDIDATES WHO DID NOT TAKE THEIR SEAT IN THE LEGISLATURE

None.

MULTI-MEMBER DISTRICTS

None. British Columbia has a history of multiple members representing a single electoral district. In the first General Election (1871) two districts were each represented by six members. Multi-member electoral districts were discontinued following the 1986 General Election and the subsequent work of the Royal Commission on Electoral Boundaries (1987) and the coming into force of the *Electoral Districts Act* (1990) when the 35th Parliament was dissolved, 19 September 1991.

REGISTERED VOTERS WHO VOTED IN MULTI-MEMBER DISTRICTS

None. Multi-member electoral districts were discontinued following the 1986 General Election and the subsequent work of the Royal Commission on Electoral Boundaries (1987 and the coming into force of the *Electoral Districts Act* (1990) when the 35th Parliament was dissolved, 19 September 1991.

Electoral Highlights 1986 - 2001

- 1986 First woman becomes Premier (Rita Johnson, Surrey-Newton): elected by Government Caucus following resignation of Premier William Vander Zalm.
- 1988 Royal Commission on Electoral Boundaries recommends the number of electoral districts be increased to 75 from 52 and the 17 multi-member member ridings be eliminated thus increasing the number of seats from 69 to 75.
- Royal Commission on Electoral Boundaries (Fisher) recommendations are implemented in the 1991 General Election held with 75 single-member electoral districts. This was the first British Columbia a General Election held without multi-member electoral districts.
 - Voters in the General Election approve a referendum providing a mechanism to recall sitting Members and to bring citizen initiatives before the Legislature or to province-wide referendum.
- 1992 *Elections Amendment Act* (SBC 1992, c. 72) lowers the voting age to 18 from 19 and eases restrictions on voting day registration.
- 1995 First comprehensive revision of *Election Act* (SBC 1995 c. 51) since 1920 is adopted.
 - Elections BC becomes an independent office of the Legislature.
 - The *Recall and Initiative Act* (SBC 1994 c. 56) comes into force providing a mechanism to recall sitting Members and to bring citizen initiatives before the Legislature or to province-wide referendum.
 - British Columbia is the only jurisdiction in Canada with recall legislation.
- 1996 Chief Electoral Officer is unanimously recommended by a multi-party Special Committee of the Legislature (Robert A. Patterson), and appointed as an officer of the Legislature.
- First petitions to recall sitting MLAs are authorized under the *Recall and Initiative Act*. These are ultimately unsuccessful failing to gather the required number of signatures set by the *Act*.
 - The first Commission is appointed under the *Electoral Boundaries Commission Act* (SBC 1989 c. 65) chaired by Josiah Wood. Subsequent Commissions to be appointed in the first Session of the Legislature after every second General Election to make recommendations on electoral boundary changes.
- Recommendations of the Electoral Boundaries Commission are implemented by the *Electoral Districts Act* (SBC 1999 c. 31) increasing the number of seats from 75 to 79.
 - First postal enumeration replaces the door-to-door canvassing process.
- 2000 First Indo-Canadian becomes Premier (Ujjal Dosanjh, Vancouver-Kensington): elected by Party convention following resignation of Premier Glen Clark.
 - Supreme Court of British Columbia upholds a challenge to the *Election Act* limits on third party spending and publication of polling data: 9 February 2000. Sections 235, 236, 237 and 238 of the *Election Act* are ruled to contravene the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms and to be of no force and effect. Requirements for third party advertisers to register and to file financial disclosure reports remains in effect.
- 2001 Constitution (Fixed Election Dates) Amendment Act (SBC 2001 c. 36) to come into force by regulation provides for fixed dates for general elections: second Tuesday in the 4th calendar year following a General Election.

Women Members of the Legislative Assembly in British Columbia 1987 – 2001

Name ¹	Party ²	Electoral District	Election
BOND, Shirley	LIB	Prince George-Mount Robson	2001
BOONE, Lois R.	NDP	Prince George-Mount Robson	1991 1996
BRENZINGER, Elayne	LIB	Surrey-Whalley	2001
BREWIN, Gretchen Mann	NDP	Victoria-Beacon Hill	1991 1996
BRICE, Susan	LIB	Saanich South	2001
CHONG, Ida	LIB	Oak Bay-Gordon Head Oak Bay-Gordon Head	1996 2001
CLARK, Christy	LIB	Port Moody-Burnaby Mountain Port Moody-Westwood	1996 2001
COPPING, Barbara E.	NDP	Port Moody-Burnaby Mountain	1991
CULL, Elizabeth	NDP	Oak Bay-Gordon Head Oak Bay-Gordon Head	By-Election 13 Dec 1989 1991
EDWARDS, Anne	NDP	Kootenay	1991
GILLESPIE, Evelyn	NDP	Comox Valley	1996
HAGEN, Anita	NDP	New Westminster	1991
HAMMELL, Sue	NDP	Surrey-Green Timbers Surrey-Green Timbers	1991 1996
HAWKINS, Sindi	LIB	Okanagan West Kelowna-Mission	1996 2001
KWAN, Jenny Wai Ching	NDP	Vancouver-Mount Pleasant	1996 2001
LOCKE, Brenda	LIB	Surrey-Green Timbers	2001
LORD, Margaret	NDP	Comox Valley	1991
MacPHAIL, Joy K.	NDP		
MARZARI, Darlene R.	NDP	Vancouver-Point Grey	1991
McGREGOR, Cathy	NDP	Kamloops	1996
McKINNON, Bonnie	LIB	Surrey-Cloverdale Sat as Independent as of 5 March 2001.	
McMAHON, Wendy	LIB	Columbia River-Revelstoke	2001
MURRAY, Joyce	LIB	New Westminster	2001
O'NEILL, Shannon	NDP	Shuswap	1991
ORR, Sheila	LIB	Victoria-Hillside	2001
PEMENT, Jackie	NDP	Bulkley Valley-Stikine 1991	

Women Members of the Legislative Assembly in British Columbia 1987 – 2001 — Continued

Name ¹	Party ²	Electoral District	Election
PRIDDY, Penny	NDP	Surrey-Newton Surrey-Newton	1991 1996
PULLINGER, Jan	NDP	Nanaimo Cowichan-Ladysmith Cowichan-Ladysmith	By-Election 15 March 1989 1991 1996
REID, Judith	LIB	Parksville-Qualicum Nanaimo-Parksville	By-Election 14 Dec 1998 2001
REID, Linda	LIB	Richmond East Richmond East Richmond East	1991 1996 2001
RODDICK, Val	LIB	Delta South Delta South	By-Election 14 Nov 1999 2001
SAHOTA, Patty	LIB	Burnaby-Edmonds	2001
SANDERS, April	LIB	Okanagan-Vernon	1996
SAWICKI, Joan	NDP	Burnaby-Willingdon	1991 1996
SMALLWOOD, Joan K.	NDP	Surrey-Whalley Surrey-Whalley	1991 1996
STEPHENS, Lynn	LIB	B Langley 1991 Langley 1996 Langley 2001	
TRUMPER, Gillian	LIB	Alberni-Qualicum	2001
TYABJI, Judi K.	LIB	Okanagan East Sat as Progressive Democratic Alliance as of 3 December 1993.	
WALSH, Erda	NDP	Kootenay	1996
WHITTRED, Katherine	LIB	North Vancouver-Lonsdale	1996 2001

 ¹ The form of name is taken from the Statement of Votes which is the form of name which appeared on the printed ballot.
 ² Party abbreviations are those used by Elections BC and the Electoral History of British Columbia, 1871-1986. LIB – Liberal Party, NDP – New Democratic Party, PDA – Progressive Democratic Alliance, RP – Reform Party, SC – Social Credit Party of British Columbia.

Premiers of British Columbia 1986 - 2001

Name and Party	Dates	Parliaments	Notes
William Nick Vander Zalm Social Credit	6 Aug. 1986 — 2 Feb. 1991	33rd	Elected Premier in General Election of 1986. Resigned as party leader and Premier prior to the 1991 General Election.
Rita Margaret Johnson ¹ Social Credit	2 Feb. 1991 — 5 Nov. 1991	33rd	Designated as Premier by Government Caucus following resignation of Premier Vander Zalm. Resigned after personal and party defeat in the 1991 General Election.
Michael Franklin Harcourt New Democratic Party	5 Nov. 1991 - 22 Feb. 1996	34 th	Elected in General Election of 1991. Resigned as party leader and Premier prior to the 1996 General Election.
Glen David Clark New Democratic Party	22 Feb. 1996- 25 Aug. 1999	34 th — 35 th	Elected in General Election of 1996. Resigned as party leader and Premier prior to the 2001 General Election.
Arthur Daniel Miller New Democratic Party	25 Aug. 1999 — 24 Feb. 2000	35 th	Designated as Premier by Government Caucus. Replaced as party leader and Premier following party leadership convention.
Ujjal Dosanjh ² New Democratic Party	24 Feb. 2000 — 5 June 2001	35 th	Elected Premier by party leadership convention. Resigned following personal and party defeat in the 2001 General Election.
Gordon Campbell Liberal	5 June 2001	36 th	Elected in General Election of 2001.

 $^{^{\}rm 1}$ First woman to become Premier of British Columbia. Designated by Government Caucus following the resignation of Premier William Vander Zalm.

 $^{^2}$ First Indo-Canadian to become Premier of British Columbia. Elected by Party Convention following the resignation of Premier Glen Clark.

Sessions of the British Columbia Legislative Assembly 1986 – 2001

34th Parliament			
Election: 22 October 1986			69 Members
1st Session	9 March 1987	_	11 March 1988
2nd Session	15 March 1988	_	16 March 1989
3rd Session	16 March 1989	_	5 April 1990
4th Session	5 April 1990	_	22 March 1991
5th Session	7 May 1991	_	27 June 1991
Dissolution: 19 September	r 1991		
35 th Parliament			
Election: 17 October 1991			75 Members
1st Session	17 March 1992		18 March 1993
2nd Session	18 March 1993	_	14 March 1994
3rd Session	14 March 1994	_	22 March 1995
4th Session	22 March 1995	_	25 April 1996
5th Session	25 April 1996		30 April 1996
Dissolution: 30 April 1996	j		
36 th Parliament			
Election: 28 May 1996			75 Members
1st Session	25 June 1996	_	24 March 1997
2nd Session	24 March 1997	_	26 March 1998
3rd Session	26 March 1998	_	14 July 1999
4th Session	15 March 2000		31 May 2000
5th Session	14 March 2001	_	18 April 2001
Dissolution: 18 April 2001			
37th Parliament			
Election: 16 May 2001			79 Members
1st Session	19 June 2001	_	24 July 2001
2nd Session	24 July 2001		- ,

Sources PART SIX

Sources

Following is the list of materials utilized and consulted in the preparation of this supplementary volume covering the period from the General Election of 1986 to the General Election of 2001. It is not intended to be an extensive bibliography of the subject.

Government Publications

British Columbia. Statutes of British Columbia, 1986 -.

British Columbia. Regulations of British Columbia, 1986 -.

British Columbia. Electoral Boundaries Commission. Report. June, 1999.

British Columbia. Legislative Assembly. Journals of the Legislative Assembly. 1986 -.

British Columbia. Legislative Assembly. Special Committee on Electoral Boundaries. Report. 1989.

British Columbia. Legislative Assembly. Special Committee to Appoint the Chief Electoral Officer. Report. 1995.

British Columbia. Royal Commission on Electoral Boundaries. *Preliminary Report*, May, 1988. *Final Report*. December, 1988. Judge Thomas Kemp Fisher, Commissioner.

Elections British Columbia. Annual Report, 1995/6 -.

Electoral History of British Columbia, 1871 – 1986. Prepared by Elections British Columbia and the Legislative Library, 1988.

Statement of Votes. (Victoria, B.C.) 1986 – Includes both General Elections and By-elections and lists of election officials.

Yearbooks

Canadian Parliamentary Guide. Ottawa, 1986 -.

Web-sites

The following organizations maintain web-sites which were also invaluable in the preparation of this supplement:

- Elections British Columbia includes Statement of Votes, Annual Reports, legislation, details of recall and initiative petitions.
- Legislative Assembly includes Debates, Legislation.
- Legislative Library includes Library Catalogue and Newspaper Index.

Other Sources

The Office of the Clerk of the Legislative Assembly was also helpful in locating information which was not included in printed sources.

Queen's Printer for British Columbia[©] Victoria, 2002

QP 395079